
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY – AUGUST 21, 2025 
 

 
JOSEPH E. TAIT  

MANAGER AND CHIEF ENGINEER 
 

  
 
 
 
 

REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Thursday, August 21 2025 

9:30 a.m. or shortly thereafter 
 

Meetings of the Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua'i will be conducted in-person at the 
Department of Water Board Room, 2nd Floor located at 4398 Pua Loke Street, Līhuʻe, Kauaʻi, 
Hawaiʻi, and remotely in accordance with Act 220, Session Laws of Hawai'i 2021 via interactive 
conference technology as follows: 
 

Click on the link below to join on your computer or mobile app by VIDEO: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87955947437 

 
Passcode: 762301 

OR 
Dial phone number and enter conference ID to call in and join by AUDIO: 

Phone: 888 788 0099 US Toll-free 
Phone Conference ID: 879 5594 7437 

 
Please Note: If you do not provide a name, unique identifier, or alias when joining the meeting, 
you will be renamed to allow staff to address and manage individual guests. 
In the event of a lost connection the Board will recess for up to 30 minutes to restore the 
connection.  If the connection cannot be restored within 30 minutes, the Board will continue the 
meeting to 12:00 p.m. or shortly thereafter.  If the visual link cannot be restored, the Board may 
reconvene with an audio-only link using the above dial-in phone number and conference ID. A 
lost connection only applies to remote connections provided as part of the remote meeting but 
does not apply to a public member being unable to access the meeting due to a connectivity issue 
on their end. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL    
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
1. Next Scheduled Board Meeting: Thursday, September 18, 2025 – 9:30 a.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 

Water has no substitute……. Conserve it 

BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 
 
 

 

 
 

JULIE SIMONTON, CHAIR 
TOM SHIGEMOTO, VICE CHAIR 
MICAH FINNILA, SECRETARY 

CLYDE KODANI, MEMBER 
KA’AINA HULL, EX-OFFICIO 
TROY TANIGAWA, EX-OFFICIO 
ERIC FUJIKAWA, EX-OFFICIO 
 

Page 1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87955947437


BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY – AUGUST 21, 2025 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
1. Regular Board Meeting – July 17, 2025 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Manager’s Report No. 26-03 Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for 

Indemnification and Unspecified Future Obligations for Adobe, Inc. between the Board of 
Water Supply, County of Kaua'i and Adobe Inc. 
 

2. Letter from Namahana Education Foundation, dated August 10, 2025, requesting an appeal 
of the Department of Water’s denial of a request for a 1 ½-inch water meter for 
construction of Phase I of the Namahana School Campus 

 
STAFF REPORTS 
1. Fiscal: 

a. Monthly dashboard – Number of Service Calls, Number of Walk-in Customers, Number 
of Customer Emails and Correspondence, Number of Customer Rebills, Accounting 
Highlights, Transponder Replacement highlights and progress, Staff Overtime hours 

b. Budget Report for July 2025 

2. Operations 
a. Monthly dashboard – Annual Financial Impact Overview, Staff Overtime Hours, 

Budgeted and Vacant Positions, Services Received/Completed, Highlights: New Hires, 
Transponders replaced, Training for HazMat Certifications 

3. Engineering 
a. Monthly dashboard – Budgeted and Vacant Positions, Staff Overtime Hours, Projects In 

Design, In Construction, Completed; Water Resources and Planning Statistics – 
Customer Requests, Applications and Permits, Service and Records Requests, Number of 
Backflow Devices tested 
i. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Project Highlights/Status Updates: 

- Kapa’a Homesteads 325’ Tanks 
- Puʻu Pane 1.0 Million Gallon Tank 
- Kalāheo Water System Improvements 
- University of Hawaiʻi Experimental Station 605’ Tank 
- Hāʻena 0.2 MG Tank 
- Paua Valley Tank No. 1 Rehab 
- Kūhiō Hwy (Hardy-Oxford) 18” Main Replacement 

ii. DOW Project Highlights/Status Updates: 
- Water Systems Investment Plan (WSIP) 
- Kauaʻi Water Use and Development Plan (KWUDP) 
- As-Needed Grant Writing and Preparation Services: WaterSMART Grant for 

Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Meters 
- America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) Risk and Resilience 

Assessment/Emergency Response Plan 

Page 2



BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY – AUGUST 21, 2025 
 

4. Administration 
a. Human Resources – updates on Personnel Vacancies 

5. Manager and Chief Engineer 
a. Reports to Manager: 

1. 4th Year Audit for Contrtact No. 724 with N&K CPAs, Inc., Annual Audit for Fiscal 
Years Ending June 30, 2022 through June 30, 2026 

2. Year 2 Services for Contract 733 with DOXIM dba Utilitec, Job. No. SS-2024-02, 
Customer Care & Billing (CC&B) 

3. Change Order No. 1 to Contract No 781 (Paul’s Electrical Contracting, LLC), Job No. 
24-14, Lihue Baseyard Electrical Relocation 

4. NASPO VL Contract No. 17-18, CPA2014-01, Year 3 of 3 Services and Contract 
Change Order No. 3 with Carahsoft Technology Corporation, Asset Managed Services 

 
TOPICS FOR NEXT BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETING: (September) 

 
TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETING: 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
Pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statues (HRS) §92-7(a), the Board may, when deemed necessary, 
hold an executive session on any agenda item without written public notice if the Executive 
Session was not anticipated in advance. Any such executive session shall be held pursuant to HRS 
§92-4 and shall be limited to those items described in HRS §92-5(a). 
 
1. Pursuant to Hawaiʻi Revised Statutes (HRS) §92-4 and §92-5(a)(4), the Office of the County 

Attorney requests an Executive Session with the Board to provide a briefing and to consult 
with the Board’s attorney on its powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and liabilities as they 
relate to the Namahana Education Foundation’s appeal of the Department of Water’s denial 
of a request for a 1 ½-inch water meter for construction of Phase I of Namahana School’s 
campus. 

 
ADJOURNMENT  

Page 3



BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY – AUGUST 21, 2025 
 

WRITTEN TESTIMONY 
The Board is required to afford all interested persons an opportunity to present testimony on 
any agenda item. The Board encourages written testimony at least two (2) business days prior 
to a scheduled Board meeting. At each Board meeting, the Board will accept oral and written 
testimony on any agenda item during the Public Testimony portion. 
 

Please include: 
1. Your name and if applicable, your position/title and organization you are representing   
2. The agenda item that you are providing comments on; and 
3. Whether you are a registered lobbyist and, if so, on whose behalf you are appearing. 

 

Send written testimony to: 
Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua‘i  
C/O Administration 
4398 Pua Loke Street  
Līhu‘e, Hawai‘i   96766 

 
E-Mail: board@kauaiwater.org  
Phone: (808) 245-5406 
Fax: (808) 245-5813 

 
Public Testimony 
You do not need to register to provide oral testimony on the day of the meeting. Please note that 
public testimony is taken after the approval of the meeting agenda to ensure public testimony is 
received before any action is taken on an agenda item. The length of time allocated to present 
oral testimony may be limited at the discretion of the chairperson. 

 
SPECIAL ASSISTANCE  

If you need an auxiliary aid/service or other accommodation due to a disability, or an interpreter 
for non-English speaking persons, please call (808) 245-5406 or email board@Kauaʻiwater.org as 
soon as possible. Requests made as early as possible will allow adequate time to fulfil your 
request. Upon request, this notice is available in alternate formats such as large print, Braille, or 
electronic copy. 

Page 4

mailto:board@kauaiwater.org
mailto:board@kauaiwater.org


 

Draft 

Minutes 

Page 5



 

Regular Meeting Minutes July 17, 2025 P a g e  | 1 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 

Thursday, July 17, 2025 
 
The Board of Water Supply, County of Kaua‘i, met in a regular meeting in Līhu'e on Thursday, July 
17, 2025. Vice Chair Shigemoto called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. The following Board 
members were present: 
 
BOARD:      EXCUSED: 
Mr. Tom Shigemoto, Vice-Chair   Ms. Julie Simonton, Chair    
Ms. Micah Finnila     Mr. Kaʻaina Hull 
Mr. Eric Fujikawa     Mr. Troy Tanigawa 
Mr. Clyde Kodani 
 
Quorum was achieved with 4 members present at Roll Call. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Next Scheduled Board Meeting: Thursday, August 21, 2025 – 9:30 a.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
The agenda was approved with no objections 
 
MEETING MINUTES 
1. Regular Board Meeting – June 19, 2025 
The minutes of the June 19, 2025 Regular Board Meeting were received for the record. 
 
PUBLIC TESTIMONY 
None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
1. Manager’s Report No. 26-01 Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for 

the Memorandum of Understanding between the Office of the Auditor, State of Hawaii and 
the Department of Water, County of Kauai 

Board member Kodani moved to approve Manager’s Report No. 26-01, seconded by Mr. 
Fujikawa; with no objections, motion carried with 4 Ayes. 
 
2. Manager’s Report No. 26-02 Discussion and Possible Action on the Approval of the 

Department of Water (DOW)’s Supplemental Operating and Capital Budget appropriations 
for Fiscal Year 2026 

Board member Kodani moved to approve Manager’s Report No. 26-02, seconded by Ms. 
Finnila; with no objections, motion carried with 4 Ayes. 
 
INFORMATIONAL BREIFING (non-action item) (deferred from June 19, 2025 meeting) 
1. Follow up discussion on April 22, 2025 Board workshop on Water System Investment Plan 

FRC Update, and preliminary discussion on upcoming rate study workshop 
- Follow up from April Board Workshop 
- Rate Making Overview 

Page 6



 

Regular Meeting Minutes July 17, 2025 P a g e  | 2 

- Financial Assurance Basics and How to Set Targets 
- Rate Making Process and Key Decisions from the Board 
- Current DOW Rates and other County Water Rates 
- Review of Current Financial Position (from previous Board workshop) 
- Overall Schedule and Stakeholder Outreach Process for the Rate Study 
- Input from the Board on Rate Study 
- Next Steps 

Michelle Sorensen of Brown and Caldwell provided a high-level summary of the Presentation 
Agenda and Next Steps of the FRC/Rate Study process, noting that a detailed presentation and 
overview would be provided at the upcoming August 11, 2025 Board Workshop.  The goal of the 
workshop is to receive feedback on the proposed process before it is presented to the public. 
 
STAFF REPORTS 
1. Fiscal: 

a. Monthly dashboard – Number of Service Calls, Number of Walk-in Customers, Number 
of Customer Emails and Correspondence, Number of Customer Rebills, Accounting 
Highlights, Transponder Replacement highlights and progress, Staff Overtime hours 

b. Budget Report for June 2025 
c. Build America Bond Quarterly Statment 

2. Operations 
a. Monthly dashboard – Annual Financial Impact Overview, Staff Overtime Hours, 

Budgeted and Vacant Positions, Services Received/Completed, Highlights: New Hires, 
Transponders replaced, Training for HazMat Certifications 

3. Engineering 
a. Monthly dashboard – Budgeted and Vacant Positions, Staff Overtime Hours, Projects In 

Design, In Construction, Completed; Water Resources and Planning Statistics – 
Customer Requests, Applications and Permits, Service and Records Requests, Number of 
Backflow Devices tested 

i. Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Project Highlights/Status Updates: 
- Kapa’a Homesteads 325’ Tanks 
- Puʻu Pane 1.0 Million Gallon Tank 
- Kalāheo Water System Improvements 
- University of Hawaiʻi Experimental Station 605’ Tank 
- Hāʻena 0.2 MG Tank 
- Paua Valley Tank No. 1 Rehab 
- Weke, ʻAnae, Mahimahi and Heʻe Roads 6” and 8” Main Replacement 

ii. DOW Project Highlights/Status Updates: 
- Water Systems Investment Plan (WSIP) 
- Kauaʻi Water Use and Development Plan (KWUDP) 
- As-Needed Grant Writing and Preparation Services: Drought Resiliency Grant 

with United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) for Haena 0.2 MG Tank 
Construction; WaterSMART Grant for Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) 
Meters 

- America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) Risk and Resilience 
Assessment/Emergency Response Plan 

b. Quarterly Update: 
i. Water Resources and Planning Section – Overview of the status of various 

applications; water service requests, Backflow devices, KWUDP Plan Update, As-
Needed Grant Writing and Preparation Services, and America’s Water Infrastructure 
Act (AWIA) Risk and Resilience Assessment/Emergency Response Plan 

Page 7



 

Regular Meeting Minutes July 17, 2025 P a g e  | 3 

ii. Project Management Section – Overview of CIP design and construction projects; 8 
active design, and 12 active construction ($73 million total):  

iii. Water Plan 2020 Construction Project Status –  Kapaʻa 325’ Tanks,  Kapa‘a  
Homestead Well No. 4, Kalaheo Water System Improvements, Kapaia Haul Cane 
Road 18” Transmission Line, Kilauea Wells No. 1 & 2, Paua Valley Tank, Kūhiō 
Highway (Hardy-Oxford) 18” Main Replacement, Weke, Anaae Mahimahi and Hee 
Roads 6” and 8” Main Replacement, Kapa‘a  Homesteads Well, Hanapēpē Town 
Well 

iv. Supplemental Support Services – RM Towill, Inc., Kennedy/Jenks, Brown and 
Caldwell, Maddaus Water Management 

4. Administration 
a. Human Resources – updates on Personnel Vacancies 
b. Office of the County Attorney Quarterly Claims report for the months of April to June 

2025 
5. Manager and Chief Engineer 

a. Reports to Manager: 
1. First Amendment to Contract No. 747 with Kennedy Jenks/Jenks Consultants, Inc. Job 

No. 23012, As Needed Project Management and Inspectional Services 
2. Change Order No. 3 for Contract No. 753 with Hawaiʻi Drilling & Pump Services, LLC 

Job. No. 24-10 Piwai Well No. 3 Repair 
3. Memorandum of Understanding between the Office of the Auditor, State of Hawaiʻi and 

Department of Water, County of Kauaʻi 
4. First Amendment to Memorandum of Understanding with County of Kauaʻi, 

Department of Public Works – Wastewater Consumption Data from CC&B 
 
TOPICS FOR NEXT BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETING: (August) 
 
TOPICS FOR FUTURE BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY MEETING: 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
Pursuant to Hawai'i Revised Statues (HRS) §92-7(a), the Board may, when deemed necessary, 
hold an executive session on any agenda item without written public notice if the Executive 
Session was not anticipated in advance. Any such executive session shall be held pursuant to 
HRS §92-4 and shall be limited to those items described in HRS §92-5(a). 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:47 a.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,       
 
 
 
Cherisse Zaima        
Commission Support Clerk       

Page 8



 

New 

Business 

Page 9



DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
County of Kaua‘i 

 
“Water has no Substitute – Conserve It!” 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT No. 26-03 
 
August 21, 2025 
 
Re:      Discussion and Possible Action to Request Board Approval for Indemnification and 

Unspecified Future Obligations for Adobe, Inc. between the Board of Water Supply, 
County of Kaua'i and Adobe Inc. 

  
RECOMMENDATION: 
The Department recommends that the Board approve Option 1, which will allow the Department 
to move forward with the renewal of Adobe, Inc.’s software suite including Adobe Developer and 
Adobe Enterprise.   
 
FUNDING: N/A 
  
BACKGROUND: 
The Department’s Information Technology Section continues to utilize Adobe for document 
management on the network document servers and approved cloud services. 
  
Renewal of the service is required to continue with its use.  The agreement contains language for 
indemnification and unspecified future obligation provisions. The County Attorney’s Office has 
reviewed and approved the Terms and Conditions for Adobe, Inc. 
 
The sections within the agreement that reference Indemnification and Unspecified Future 
Obligations are highlighted below: 
  
Adobe Developer Terms 

7.3 Payment Processors. We or you may use third-party payment processors (each a “Payment 
Processor”) to facilitate payment to you arising out of sales of your Developer Software. A 
Payment Processor may require you to provide additional information or enter a separate 
agreement directly with them to utilize their services. In certain cases, Adobe may require that a 
particular Payment Processor be used. Unless otherwise approved in writing by Adobe, you 
agree that any payment processing using a Payment Processor must occur outside of the 
applicable Adobe Software or Service. You acknowledge and agree that we have no liability due 
to any delay or inaccuracy of payments, or otherwise due to any use of a Payment Processor, and 
you agree to resolve any dispute related to the processing or payment of fees directly with such 
Payment Processor. In addition, we may share information about you with the Payment 
Processor and other third-party service providers as necessary to enable your use of the 
Developer Tools. We do not have access to or control over actions that a third party may take 

Page 10



Manager’s Report No. 26-03 
August 21, 2025 
Page 2 of 5 
 
and the information handling practices of third-party websites are not covered by the Adobe 
Privacy Policy, these Terms, or any other applicable terms and conditions between you and us.  

 
7.4 Taxes and Third-Party Fees. You must pay, and we are not responsible for payment of, any 
applicable taxes and third-party fees (such as telephone toll charges, mobile carrier fees, ISP 
charges, data plan charges, credit card fees, or foreign exchange fees) incurred in connection 
with the licensing of your Developer Software through Adobe Exchange or other channels 
approved by us. If any fees are charged to us, we may take steps to collect those fees from you, 
and you will be responsible for all related collection costs and expenses incurred by us.  

 

8.2 Adobe Trademark Restrictions. (A) You agree to use the Adobe Trademarks only in 
connection with Developer Software that (1) complies with these Terms, (2) conforms to any 
quality standards set by us, and (3) complies with all applicable laws for the jurisdiction in which 
the Developer Software is made or used. Upon request, you must notify us of all the locations 
where you are using the Adobe Trademarks, provide us with representative samples of such use, 
and assist in and comply with monitoring and maintaining the quality and form of the Adobe 
Trademarks. Upon notice, you must cease any use of the Adobe Trademarks that we determine, 
in our sole discretion, is contrary to the intent of the trademark license grant above. You are 
solely responsible for any costs associated with removing or modifying your use of the Adobe 
Trademarks as requested by us.  

8.3 Developer Trademarks. You grant to us a nonexclusive, non-sublicensable, royalty-free, 
worldwide license to reproduce and use your name, trademarks, service marks, trade names, 
logos, and other marks and descriptive materials to publicly refer to you or your Developer 
Software for the purpose of advertising and promoting Adobe Services, Adobe Software, and 
your Developer Software, including listings of your Developer Software through Adobe 
Exchange or other channels approved by us. 

11.2 Indemnification. You will indemnify us and our subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, agents, 
employees, partners, and licensors from any claim, demand, loss, or damage, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, arising out of or related to (A) any breach of these Terms by you, 
including any breach or alleged breach of any representations and warranties made by you 
concerning any aspect of the Developer Software; (B) your use of the Developer Tools; (C) any 
alleged or actual violation of your obligations of privacy to any third party; (D) any End User 
claim related to the Developer Software, including but not limited to any allegations based on a 
product liability claim; and (E) any claim related to your agreement or relationship with an End 
User. We have the right to control the defense of any claim, action, or matter subject to 
indemnification by you with counsel of our own choosing, and you will fully cooperate with us 
in the defense of any such claim, action, or matter.  
14.1 Termination by You. You may terminate your use of the Developer Tools or your access 
to Adobe Services or Adobe Software through your Developer Software at any time. 

Page 11



Manager’s Report No. 26-03 
August 21, 2025 
Page 3 of 5 
 
Termination does not relieve you of any obligation existing prior to termination, including the 
obligation to pay any outstanding fees. 

15.7 Remedies. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Terms, breach of these Terms by 
you may cause us irreparable damage for which recovery of money damages will be inadequate, 
and we will be entitled to seek timely injunctive relief to protect our rights under these Terms 
without the posting of a bond in addition to seeking any and all remedies available at law. If any 
legal action is brought to enforce these Terms, the prevailing party will be entitled to receive its 
attorneys’ fees, court costs, and other collection expenses, in addition to any other relief it may 
receive.  
 
Adobe General Terms 

7.1 Taxes and Third-Party 
You must pay any applicable taxes and third-party fees (including, for example, telephone toll 
charges, mobile carrier fees, ISP charges, data plan charges, credit card fees, VAT, foreign 
exchange fees, and foreign transaction fees). We are not responsible for these fees. Contact 
your financial institution with questions about fees. We may take steps to collect the fees you 
owe us. You are responsible for all related collection costs and expenses. If you are located in 
a different country from the applicable Adobe entity with which you are transacting (i.e., 
Adobe Inc. for North American customers and Adobe Systems Software Ireland Limited for 
customers in all other countries), your payments will be made to a foreign entity. 
 
8.2 Indemnification 
You will indemnify us and our subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, agents, employees, partners, and 
licensors from any claim(s), demand(s), loss(es), or damage(s), including reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of, or related to: 
(A) your Content, including, but not limited to Creative Cloud Customer Fonts; 
(B) your use of the Services and Software (as applicable); 
(C) your interactions with any other users (including Third-Party Entitlement Holders); or 
(D) your violation of the Terms (“Matter”). 
We have the right to control the defense of any Matter subject to indemnification by you with 
counsel of our own choosing. You will fully cooperate with us in the defense of any Matter. 
 
11.1 Termination by You 
You may cancel your subscription and terminate your use of the Services and Software at any 
time. Cancellation or termination of your account does not relieve you of any obligation to 
pay any outstanding fees associated with your subscription, including, but not limited to early 
cancellation fees. 
 
14.4 Arbitration Fees and Costs 
Payment of all filing, administration, and arbitrator fees and costs of arbitration will be 
governed by the rules of the arbitration provider, except that to the extent that you bring a 
Claim as part of a Coordinated Action, we agree that the parties will equally share all of the 
fees and costs of arbitration (to the extent that allocation is not already required under 
applicable rules). For purposes of this section, a “Coordinated Action” is any action in which 

Page 12



Manager’s Report No. 26-03 
August 21, 2025 
Page 4 of 5 
 
you are represented by a law firm or collection of law firms that has filed numerous 
coordinated individual arbitration demands of the same or similar nature against Adobe 
within a short time. Notwithstanding the above, if you are unable to afford fees or costs of 
arbitration, Adobe will pay them. If the arbitrator finds that either the substance of a Claim or 
the relief sought in arbitration was frivolous, or a Claim was brought for an improper purpose, 
the parties may seek to re-allocate the fees and costs of arbitration, according to the rules of 
the arbitration provider. 
 
Adobe Enterprise Terms of Service 
 
2.3 Disputes. If Customer believes in good faith that Adobe has incorrectly billed Customer, 
Customer must contact Adobe in writing within 30 days of the invoice date, specifying the error. 
Unless Customer has correctly notified Adobe of the dispute, Customer must reimburse Adobe's 
reasonable collection costs. Customer must pay the undisputed portions of Adobe's invoice as 
required by this Agreement. 
5.2 Outsourcing and Third-Party Access. Customer may allow a third-party contractor to 
operate, use, or access the Products and Services solely on Customer's behalf, provided such use 
or access is only for Customer's direct beneficial business purposes. Customer is responsible for 
ensuring that any third-party or Affiliate operating, using, or accessing the Products and Services 
on Customer's behalf complies with the terms of this Agreement. Customer is responsible for and 
liable for the acts or omissions of such Affiliate or third-party as if they were Customer's acts or 
omissions. 
 
8. INDEMNITIES 

8.1 Data Privacy Claims. 

(A) Cooperation and Mitigation.  
(B) Data Privacy Claims. Indemnifying Party will at its expense indemnify and defend the 
Indemnified Party against those losses of the Indemnified Party set out below in this section 
8.1(8) to the extent: (1) permitted by law; and (2) directly attributable to a third-party Data 
Privacy Claim against the Indemnified Party: 

(1) settlement amounts negotiated by Indemnifying Party; 

(2) damages finally awarded by a court; 

(3) administrative fines or penalties imposed by a regulatory authority; 

(4) reasonable attorney's fees; and 

(5) reasonable out-of-pocket expenses associated with satisfying applicable statutory 
requirements related to forensic analysis, credit monitoring, and notifying affected 
individuals of the incident giving rise to the Data Privacy Claim, as applicable. 

(C) Exception . Indemnifying Party will have no liability for or obligation to defend any Data 
Privacy Claim to the extent such Claim arises from any act or omission of Indemnified Party that 

Page 13



Manager’s Report No. 26-03 
August 21, 2025 
Page 5 of 5 
 
impedes or prevents Indemnifying Party's ability to comply with applicable data security and 
privacy laws. 
 
8.3 Other Claims. Customer will, at its expense, defend or settle any third-party Claim against 
Adobe to the extent it arises from Customer's breach of section 4.4 (Third-Party Providers). 
 
13.3 Effect of Termination or Expiration. 

(A) Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement or any License Term for the Products and 
Services: 

(1) the licenses and associated rights to the Products and Services will immediately 
terminate; 

(2) Customer must, at its expense: (a) remove and delete all copies of the On-premise 
Software and Distributed Code; and (b) remove all references and links to the Cloud 
Services from the Customer Sites. Some or all of the Products and Services may cease to 
operate without prior notice upon expiration or termination of the License Term; and 

(3) Customer Data stored within the Cloud Services will be available to Customer for 30 
days after the termination or expiration in the same format then available within the 
reporting interface(s), unless specified in the respective PSLT. 

(B) Customer will be liable for any fees for any Cloud Services that are still in use or which 
remain active after termination or expiration of this Agreement. These fees will be invoiced to 
Customer at the rate set out in the Sales Order. 
  
OPTIONS 
Option 1:  Approve the Department’s request. 
Pro: The Department will be able to move forward with the renewal and 

continued use of Adobe Inc.’s software increasing productivity. 
Cons: The Department would have potential risk associated with indemnification 

and unspecified future obligation provisions of the Adobe software 
agreement. 

  
Option 2: Deny the Department’s request. 
Pro: No potential legal risk associated with indemnification and unspecified 

future obligation provisions of the Adobe software agreement. 
Cons: The Department’s ability to route digital approvals would be limited to the 

physical distribution of forms and digitizing physical form approvals.  
Without this Adobe document management system, the Department would 
have a significant increase in labor and decreased productivity. 

 
 
 
RN/crz 
 
Attachment: Adobe Software Transaction Agreement 

Page 14



Adobe Developer Terms of Use

Last updated June 18, 2024. 

1. Your Agreement with Adobe.

1.1 These Adobe Developer Terms of Use (these Terms are a you or your
and the Adobe entity stated in section 1.2 ( Adobe , we , us , or our governing your use of (A) the Adobe 
developer sites located at https://developer.adobe.com (including the Developer Console at
https://developer.adobe.com/console/home), (B) the Adobe Exchange site and producer portal located at
https://exchange.adobe.com, (C) the Developer Mode of Adobe Express Add-on Marketplace, and (D) any 
Developer Tools (defined in section 2) that we make available to you. These Terms supersede all prior versions of 
the Terms (including prior versions of the Developer Terms of Use, the Adobe Exchange Agreement, and the Adobe 
Developer Product Specific Terms) in their entirety.

1.2 If you reside in North America (inclusive of United States, Canada, Mexico, United States territories and 
possessions, and United States military bases wherever located), your relationship is with Adobe Inc., a 
Delaware corporation, and these Terms are governed by the laws of California, U.S.A., unless preempted by U.S. 
federal law, without regard to conflict of law rules. If you reside outside of North America, your relationship is 
with Adobe Systems Software Ireland Limited, and these Terms are governed by the laws of Ireland. For 
customers in Australia, Adobe Systems Software Ireland Limited is acting as an authorized agent of Adobe Systems 
Pty Ltd. and is entering into this contract in its capacity as agent for Adobe Systems Pty Ltd. You may have 
additional rights under your local laws. We do not seek to limit those rights where it is prohibited to do so by law.

1.3 If you are an Admin (defined in section 2), or you otherwise use the Developer Tools on behalf of a Business
(defined in section 2) (in your personal capacity) along with your Business, and you 
represent and warrant that you (in your personal capacity) have all necessary authority to bind that Business to 
these Terms.

1.4 Use of certain Adobe offerings, including Adobe Services and Adobe Software, is subject to the Terms and a 
separate agreement between you and us.

1.5 The Adobe Privacy Policy (https://www.adobe.com/go/privacy) describes the privacy practices of the Adobe 
Services and Adobe Software.

2. Definitions.

2.1 Admin means an administrator who manages the Adobe Services and Adobe Software for Business Users 
within your Business using the Admin Console and/or Developer Console.

2.2 Admin Console the program administration user interface that allows Admins to manage their 
.

2.3 Adobe Exchange the application marketplace and producer portal located at 
https://exchange.adobe.com (or successor URL).

2.4 Adobe Express the online and mobile design application located at https://express.adobe.com
(and all associated subdomains, including https://new.express.adobe.com).

2.5 Adobe Express Add-on Marketplace the extensibility platform available on Adobe Express, which 
allows Developers to create and distribute Developer Software to End Users or for internal use.

2.6 Adobe ID means the unique username, password, and profile information you use to create a developer 
account and to sign in and access the Developer Tools.

2.7 Adobe Services means our website, web-based applications and products, customer support, discussion 
forums, or other interactive areas or services, and services such as Creative Cloud and the Developer Tools.

2.8 Adobe Sign-in UI -in screen interface template 
made available by us and required for display in a user interface as the visual prompt to facilitate or initiate log-in 
to Adobe Services.

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 1 of 16

Page 15



2.9 Adobe Software  means software that we include as part of the Adobe Services, as well as any applications 
(including mobile applications), Developer Tools, Sample Files and Content Files, scripts, instruction sets, and 
related documentation. 

2.10 Adobe Stock Work(s)
assets, and other pictorial or graphic works available for license via the Adobe Stock services at stock.adobe.com 
(or successor URL), or that are otherwise identified as Adobe Stock assets. 

2.11 Adobe Trademarks -in UI; Badges; Feature Icons; Adobe trademarks, names, logos 
and icons in the Branding Guidelines; and any other trademarks expressly provided to you by us for the purpose of 
promoting the availability of your approved Developer Software. 

2.12 API application programming interfaces. 

2.13 API Key
ID, which is used by us to associate, validate, and authenticate your API activity and Developer Software. 

2.14 Badges , and text identified as a badge  in the Branding 
Guidelines. 

2.15 Branding Guidelines we may publish or provide to you in 
connection with your use of the Adobe Trademarks, including the guidelines available at: 
https://www.adobe.com/go/trademarks (or successor URL). 

2.16 Business commercial 
entity, government entity, non-profit organization, or educational institution. 

2.17 Business User

Cloud for Enterprise, or Document Cloud).  

2.18 Confidential Information , or electronic form: (A) any 
information Adobe marks as confidential  or orally designates as confidential at the time of disclosure; (B) the 
Prerelease Developer Tools, including their existence, features and functionality, trade secrets, source code, and 
any other associated information, whether or not marked confidential; (C D) discussions 
of potential features and/or product changes; (E) Feedback and opinions stemming from the Feedback; (F) 
opinions stemming from any customer advisory boards organized by us; (G) any APIs that are not publicly 
documented when you are given access to them; and (H) any derivative works of the above. 

1) is or becomes generally publicly available at the time of 
disclosure or subsequently through no fault of your own; (2) was known to you, free of any confidentiality 
obligations, before its disclosure by us; (3) becomes known to you, free of any confidentiality obligations, from a 
source other than us; (4) is necessary to publish the Developer Software, including the Developer Software itself; 
or (5) is independently developed by  you without use of Confidential Information. 

2.19  means Adobe assets provided as part of the Adobe Services and Adobe Software. 

2.20  means the console located at: https://developer.adobe.com/console/home (or 
successor URL). 

2.21 Developer Mode  a setting that allows Developers to access Developer Tools available on Adobe 
Express to create, test, deploy and publish Developer Software. 

2.22 Developer Software  means any software applications, programs, add-ons, extensions, plug-ins, and other 
technologies you develop that are intended to access, function or interoperate with, or add features or 
functionality to Adobe Software or Adobe Services. 

2.23 Developer Tools means Adobe Software or Adobe Services we provide to you for the purpose of 
accessing, interoperating with, or adding functionality to other Adobe Software and Adobe Services. Developer 
Tools may include, without limitation, (A) software development kit ( SDK ) files, tools, programs, and utilities; (B) 
plug-ins or other APIs; (C) API Keys; (D) header or Java Archive (JAR) files; (E) sample images, sounds, or similar 

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 2 of 16

Page 16



assets; (F) Sample Code; (G) related documentation, technical specifications, notes, and explanatory materials; (H) 
other development items and associated or related materials provided to you by us; and (I) modifications, updates, 
upgrades, or copies of any of the foregoing items. also includes  
except where expressly indicated. 

2.24  means data Adobe collects about your interaction with and relating to your use of 
the Developer Tools, Adobe Services, Adobe Software, the Adobe developer sites located at 
https://developer.adobe.com (including the Developer Console) and at https://exchange.adobe.com (Adobe 
Exchange). 

2.25 End Use  has the meaning stated in section 4.1(B). 

2.26 End User  means a customer who purchases or uses your Developer Software. 

2.27 Feature Icons
interface to uniquely identify certain discrete features, components, or processing functions of Adobe Software or 
Adobe Services. 

2.28 Feedback bug or crash reports, suggestions, proposals, and other information or materials 
provided by you to us relating to your access to, use of, and evaluation of the Prerelease Developer Tools or the 
Developer Tools, along with all associated Intellectual Property Rights. 

2.29 Intellectual Property Rights s copyrights, moral rights, trademarks, trade dress, patents, trade 
secrets, unfair competition, rights of privacy, rights of publicity, and any other proprietary rights. 

2.30 Payment Processor  has the meaning stated in section 7.3. 

2.31 Prerelease Developer Tools Developer Tools. 

2.32 Restricted Country  has the meaning stated in section 6.17. 

2.33 Sample Code
incorporate into your Developer Software in accordance with these Terms. 

2.34 Sample Files Adobe-provided audio, visual, video, or other content files for use in tutorials, 
demonstrations, and for other testing purposes, which may be identified as sample files.

2.35 Submission Guidelines  our current approval guidelines and standard policies for the applicable 
marketplace located at https://developer.adobe.com/developer-distribution/creative-
cloud/docs/guides/submission/overview (or successor URL) for Adobe Exchange and 
https://developer.adobe.com/express-add-ons/docs/guides/distribute (or successor URL) for Adobe Express Add-
on Marketplace.  

2.36 Testing Period
you until the earlier of the date of the first commercial release of the Prerelease Developer Tools or a date 
communicated to you by us.

3. Developer Credentials. 

3.1 Your Account. Except as expressly permitted by us, you must create an Adobe ID and online developer 
account profile to obtain and use the Developer Tools and create Developer Software. You must keep your account 
profile up to date with current account information (including current contact information) at all times. You are 
responsible for all activity that occurs via your account even if that activity is not by you or is without your 
knowledge or consent. Please notify Adobe customer support immediately if you become aware of any 
unauthorized use of your account. You may not (A) share your account information (except with an authorized 

 Your 
account administrator may use your account information to manage your use and access to the Developer Tools. 
You will access the Developer Tools by the means required by us and as otherwise described in the relevant 
documentation. When using APIs, you may not mispresent or mask your identity or that of your API client. 

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 3 of 16

Page 17



3.2 API Key. If an API requires an API Key, you must obtain a separate API Key for each Developer Software. 
Until we approve your Developer Software for distribution, you may only use the API Key for development and 
testing of Developer Software and may not use it in connection with any Developer Software made available to 
End Users.

3.3 Developer Usage Data. You agree that we may collect Developer Usage Data associated with your Adobe ID 
and online developer account profile to maintain security, monitor performance, and improve service quality. In 
addition, you agree that we may monitor and collect Developer Usage Data, including personal information, for 
our research, product development, and product improvement purposes. You agree we may transfer your 
personal information across national boundaries and store and process such information in any of the countries 
we or our agents maintain offices. If you do not wish to have your usage tracked, your only option is to discontinue 
use of the Developer Tools, the Adobe developer sites located at https://developer.adobe.com (including the 
Developer Console at https://developer.adobe.com/console/home), and at https://exchange.adobe.com/ (Adobe 
Exchange).

4. Licenses.

4.1 License to You.

(A) We grant to you a limited, non-exclusive, non-sublicensable, non-transferable, revocable license to (1) use 
and reproduce the Developer Tools for the development and testing of your Developer Software; and (2) subject 
to the approval rights in section 5 (Distribution of Developer Software), distribute the Developer Tools (or portions 
thereof) solely in and with your approved Developer Software in object code form only. The foregoing grant of 
license does not apply to Prerelease Developer Tools; see section 9 (Prerelease Developer Tools) for terms 
governing your use of Prerelease Developer Tools.

(B) Unless documentation or specific licenses (including but not limited to Product Specific Terms) state 
otherwise, we grant you a limited nonexclusive, non-sublicensable, non-transferable, revocable license to use the 
Content Files to create your end use (i.e., the derivative application or product authored by you) into which the 

End Use
prior to embedding them in the End Use. You may reproduce and distribute Content Files only in connection with 
your End Use, however, under no circumstances can you distribute the Content Files on a stand-alone basis, 
outside of the End Use.

4.2 License to Adobe. If you choose to submit your Developer Software to us, you grant us a worldwide, 
nonexclusive, royalty-free, fully paid-up license to (A) test, reproduce, and otherwise use your Developer Software 
for approval for distribution; and (B) publicly display, modify, sublicense, and distribute your Developer Software
to End Users through Adobe Exchange or other channels approved by us.

4.3 Ownership. The Developer Tools and the 
and are protected by United States law (including United States copyright, trademark, trade secret, and patent 
law), international treaty provisions, and applicable laws of the country in which they are being used. We and our 
suppliers retain title and ownership of these items, the media on which they are recorded, and all subsequent 
copies, regardless of the form or media in or on which the original and other copies may exist. We reserve all rights 
not expressly granted in these Terms. You agree to retain and reproduce in full any Adobe copyright notices or 
other proprietary notices or disclaimers in all copies of the Developer Tools, or any portions thereof.

4.4 Modifications. We may modify, update, or discontinue the Developer Tools at any time without notice or 
liability to you or anyone else, and your continued access to or use of the Developer Tools will constitute 
acceptance of such update or modification. You are responsible for implementing the most current version of such 
Developer Tools at your sole cost and expense promptly following the release of any update or modification to any 
Developer Tools.

4.5 Third-Party Terms. The Developer Tools may contain third-party software (such as free or open source 
software) and may be subject to Product Specific Terms and conditions found in a separate license agreement; a 

Product Specific Terms and 
http://www.adobe.com/go/thirdparty Third-Party License Terms -

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 4 of 16

Page 18



Party License Terms may require you to pass through notices to your End Users and will control if there is a conflict 
between these Terms and such Third-Party License Terms. 

4.6 Sample Files. Sample Files may not be used for any other purpose than for which they were provided. You 
may not distribute Sample Files in any way that allows a third party to use, download, extract, or access the 
Sample Files as a stand-alone file, and you may not claim any rights in the Sample Files. 

5. Distribution of Developer Software. 

5.1 Approval by Adobe. We may restrict distribution of any Developer Software (or access to Adobe Software 
and Adobe Services by Developer Software) not approved by us. As part of the approval process, we may review 
Developer Software (A) for compliance with these Terms, (B) for adherence to the applicable Submission 
Guidelines, and (C) to identify issues regarding security, privacy, and poor performance that might affect us or our 
users. We may also require re-approval for any changes to Developer Software, including bug fixes, updates, 
upgrades, and new releases. We may withdraw approval for any Developer Software at any time for any reason, 
including failure to comply with these Terms. If we withdraw approval for any Developer Software, you must stop 
distributing the Developer Software and accessing Adobe Software and Adobe Services through such Developer 
Software within ten days of notice of such withdrawal. 

5.2 Distribution Channels. We may require you to distribute approved Developer Software only through Adobe 
Exchange, Adobe Express Add-on Marketplace, or other channels approved by us.

6. Requirements and Restrictions. 

6.1 No Modifications or Reverse Engineering. Except as expressly permitted in these Terms, you may not 
(A) modify, port, adapt, or translate any portion of any Developer Tools; or (B) reverse engineer (including but not 
limited to monitoring or tracking the inputs and outputs flowing through a system or an application in order to 
recreate that system), decompile, disassemble, or otherwise attempt to discover, within any Developer Tool, the 
data representations or underlying algorithms, processes, methods, and source code of any portion of any Adobe 
Software and Adobe Services (including Developer Tools) not provided to you in source code form. If the laws of 
your jurisdiction give you the right to decompile a Developer Tool to obtain information necessary to render the 
licensed portions of the Developer Tool interoperable with other software, you may do so only after you first 
request such information from us, and we may impose reasonable conditions, including a reasonable fee, on such 

Developer Tool source code are protected 
and our obligations are met. 

6.2 No Interference. Except as expressly permitted by us, you may not create Developer Software that 
(A) Adobe Services or Adobe 
Software; or (B) degrades, adversely affects, or otherwise negatively interferes with the functionality or 
appearance of any Adobe Services or Adobe Software. You may also not use the Developer Tools to create 
Developer Software that enables interference with or modification of the default language of any Adobe Services 
or Adobe Software.

6.3 No Unbundling. The Developer Tools may (A) include various applications, utilities, and components; 
(B) support multiple platforms and languages; or (C) be provided to you on multiple media or in multiple copies. 
You may not unbundle or repackage the component parts of, or any of your rights in, any Developer Tools for 
distribution, transfer, or resale.

6.4 Malware. You may not knowingly, willfully, or negligently incorporate any malicious or harmful code, 
viruses, Trojan Horses, worms, time bombs, cancelbots, or other malware in your Developer Software. 

6.5 Trade Controls. Your use of Developer Software is subject to U.S. export controls. You will comply with all 
U.S. and other import, export, and re-export restrictions that apply to your use of Developer Software, including 
the US Export Administration Regulations. In addition, you represent and warrant that you are not listed on any 
sanctions list issued by United States, European Union, or United Kingdom, or otherwise subject to sanctions, and 
you are not a citizen of, or located in, an embargoed territory (currently, Cuba, Iran, North Korea, Syria, the Crimea 
Region of Ukraine, or the so-  

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 5 of 16

Page 19



6.6 Viral Open-Source Software. You may not integrate, use, distribute, or otherwise combine the Developer 
Tools with other software in a way that would require the Developer Tools or any other Adobe Services or
Software to be: (A) disclosed or distributed in source code form; (B) licensed for the purpose of making derivative 
works; or (C) redistributed at no charge, which typically occurs in connection with, but not limited to, software 
licensed under GNU General Public License (GPL), GNU Affero General Public License (AGPL), GNU Lesser General 
Public License (LGPL), or other open-source licenses.

6.7 Usage Limits. Unless otherwise agreed in a separate agreement, we may limit your use of the Developer 
Tools in our sole discretion, such as by limiting the type of calls accepted by an API or limiting the number of calls 
to an API. You may not attempt to circumvent such limitations and must obtain our express written consent to use 
the Developer Tools in a way that exceeds such limitations. 

6.8 No Sublicensing. You may not (A) sublicense the Developer Tools for use by a third party or (B) sell, rent, 
lease, lend, or otherwise grant to any third party any rights in the Developer Tools. 

6.9 Similar Functionality. You may not create Developer Software that does not add significant functionality or 
features beyond a Developer Tool or an API provided to you by Adobe. 

6.10 End User Data. If you collect, use, or process personal information through your Developer Software, you 
must: (A) comply with all applicable privacy laws and regulations; (B) post a privacy notice that you make easily 
accessible to End Users in your listing on Adobe Exchange (or other channel approved by us) and from within your 
Developer Software in which notice you clearly describe your practices for collecting, using, and processing End 
User personal information, including any sharing with third parties; (C) respect your End U
to your privacy notice commitments; and (D) immediately delete any  content or other information, 
including tokens, upon request by that End User or us or when that End User closes the applicable account with 
you. 

6.11 Re-identification. You must not attempt to re-identify a natural person or otherwise derive personal 
information by any linking, combination, or cross-comparison of the data you obtain through your Developer 
Software with data from third-party sources. 

6.12 Non-Blocking of Adobe Development. We may develop, acquire, license, maintain, or distribute
technologies or products, now or in the future, that have design or functionality similar to or competitive with your 
Developer Software and nothing in these Terms limits our right to do so. You agree not to assert any Intellectual 
Property Rights covering your Developer Software against us, our subsidiaries or affiliates, or our or their 
customers, agents, or contractors for the manufacture, use, import, licensing, sale or offer for sale of any Adobe 
Software, Adobe Services, or other products or technologies. 

6.13 Support. You are solely responsible for providing support to End Users of your Developer Software.

6.14 Compliance. You must comply with all applicable laws and regulations and may not use the Developer Tools 
to encourage or promote illegal activity or violate third-party rights, including but not limited to creating Developer 
Software that violates any law, regulation, or the rights of others when used as intended or marketed. 

6.15 End User License Agreement. You must include your own end user license agreement with your Developer 
Software. Your end user license agreement may not contain provisions that are inconsistent with these Terms. 

6.16 Machine Learning and Artificial Intelligence. You will not, and will not allow third parties to, use the Adobe 
Services or Adobe Software (or any content, data, output, or other information received or derived from the 
Adobe Services or Adobe Software) to directly or indirectly create, train, test, or otherwise improve any machine 
learning algorithms or artificial intelligence systems, including any architectures, models, or weights, or for any 
technologies designed or intended for the identification of natural persons.  

6.17 Regional Service Limitations. Unless use in a Restricted Country is specifically authorized by Adobe, you are 
not permitted to use any Developer Tools in any Restricted Country or to enable users in a Restricted Country to 
use the Developer Software Restricted Country
access or usage is restricted by local laws or is otherwise restricted pursuant to section 6.5 (Trade Controls). 

7. Fees, Revenue Share and Payment Processing.

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 6 of 16

Page 20



7.1 Fees Charged by Us. We may set prices or charge a fee for use of any features, components, or processing 
functions provided or enabled through the Developer Tools.

7.2 Fees Paid by Us. If we offer a revenue share for the sale of your Developer Software through Adobe 
Exchange or other channels approved by us, then we will pay you according to the relevant section in these Terms 
and payment policies for such channel. We may modify our payment policies at any time, and you are responsible 
for checking them regularly for updates. By continuing to submit Developer Software to us or by not removing 
Developer Software, you are agreeing to any modified payment policies. You may designate your Developer 
Software as free software, trial software, or test software, in which case we may distribute the Developer Software 
without liability or payment to you. Except as stated in these Terms, we have no payment obligations to you. 

7.3 Payment Processors. We or you may use third- Payment Processor
facilitate payment to you arising out of sales of your Developer Software. A Payment Processor may require you to 
provide additional information or enter a separate agreement directly with them to utilize their services. In certain 
cases, Adobe may require that a particular Payment Processor be used. Unless otherwise approved in writing by 
Adobe, you agree that any payment processing using a Payment Processor must occur outside of the applicable 
Adobe Software or Service. You acknowledge and agree that we have no liability due to any delay or inaccuracy of 
payments, or otherwise due to any use of a Payment Processor, and you agree to resolve any dispute related to 
the processing or payment of fees directly with such Payment Processor. In addition, we may share information 
about you with the Payment Processor and other third-party service providers as necessary to enable your use of 
the Developer Tools. We do not have access to or control over actions that a third party may take and the
information handling practices of third-party websites are not covered by the Adobe Privacy Policy, these Terms, 
or any other applicable terms and conditions between you and us.

7.4 Taxes and Third-Party Fees. You must pay, and we are not responsible for payment of, any applicable taxes 
and third-party fees (such as telephone toll charges, mobile carrier fees, ISP charges, data plan charges, credit card 
fees, or foreign exchange fees) incurred in connection with the licensing of your Developer Software through
Adobe Exchange or other channels approved by us. If any fees are charged to us, we may take steps to collect 
those fees from you, and you will be responsible for all related collection costs and expenses incurred by us.

8. Trademarks.

8.1 Adobe Trademark License.
(A) We grant to you a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, revocable license to use the Adobe Trademarks 
in your Developer Software, on your website, and in printed and electronic communications solely to indicate that 
your approved Developer Software provides a connection to, interoperates with, or is compatible with the Adobe 
Services or Adobe Software, or is available through Adobe Exchange or other channels approved by us, so long as 
your use of the Adobe Trademarks complies with these Terms, the Branding Guidelines, and any other applicable 
guidelines or restrictions provided by us. We may revise or update our Branding Guidelines at any time, and you 
must remain in compliance with the then-current version of our Branding Guidelines at all times. 

(B) These Terms do not grant you rights to use any trademarks other than the Adobe Trademarks and do not 
grant you any right, title, or interest in any Adobe Trademarks other than as expressly stated in these Terms. You 
acknowledge our ownership of the Adobe Trademarks, recognize the value of the goodwill associated with the 
Adobe Trademarks, and acknowledge that such goodwill exclusively inures to the benefit of and belongs to us. You 
agree not to use the Adobe Trademarks in any way that will disparage us or any Adobe Services or Adobe 
Software, damage or interfere with the goodwill in the Adobe Trademarks, infringe our Intellectual Property
Rights, or make a false or misleading statement regarding your Developer Software.

8.2 Adobe Trademark Restrictions.

(A) You agree to use the Adobe Trademarks only in connection with Developer Software that (1) complies with 
these Terms, (2) conforms to any quality standards set by us, and (3) complies with all applicable laws for the 
jurisdiction in which the Developer Software is made or used. Upon request, you must notify us of all the locations 
where you are using the Adobe Trademarks, provide us with representative samples of such use, and assist in and 
comply with monitoring and maintaining the quality and form of the Adobe Trademarks. Upon notice, you must 
cease any use of the Adobe Trademarks that we determine, in our sole discretion, is contrary to the intent of the 

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 7 of 16

Page 21



trademark license grant above. You are solely responsible for any costs associated with removing or modifying 
your use of the Adobe Trademarks as requested by us.

(B) You may only use the Badges to market and promote your Developer Software. You may not use the Badges 
on or in the user interface of your Developer Software.

(C) If your Developer Software identifies, initiates, or facilitates log-in to Adobe Services, you are required to 
use the Adobe Sign-in UI in the user interface of your Developer Software. If your Developer Software identifies 
discrete Adobe Service or Adobe Software features, components, or processing functions, you are required to use 
the Feature Icons in the user interface of your Developer Software. You may not use Adobe Sign-in UI or Feature 
Icons to market or promote your Developer Software or in any manner other than as described in these Terms, the 
Branding Guidelines, and any other applicable guidelines or restrictions provided to you by us.

(D) Consistent with the Branding Guidelines, you may not use any Adobe Trademarks, Adobe word or logo 
marks, any Adobe product names, or any similar names or designs, in whole, in part, or in any abbreviated form, in 
the name or product icon of your Developer Software, or register or seek to register a website domain name or 
trademark that contains or is confusingly similar to any of the foregoing.

8.3 Developer Trademarks. You grant to us a nonexclusive, non-sublicensable, royalty-free, worldwide license 
to reproduce and use your name, trademarks, service marks, trade names, logos, and other marks and descriptive 
materials to publicly refer to you or your Developer Software for the purpose of advertising and promoting Adobe 
Services, Adobe Software, and your Developer Software, including listings of your Developer Software through 
Adobe Exchange or other channels approved by us.

9. Prerelease Developer Tools.

9.1 Evaluation License. In the event Prerelease Developer Tools are made available, we grant to you a limited, 
nonexclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free license to use the Prerelease Developer Tools during the Testing 
Period for the purpose of evaluating the Prerelease Developer Tools and providing Feedback to us.

9.2 Additional Requirements and Restrictions for Prerelease Developer Tools.

(A) Prohibited Output. You may not make any public use of the Prerelease Developer Tools, including without 
limitation distributing, publicly showing or displaying, or publicly referencing the Prerelease Developer Tools. You 
may not share screenshots of any Prerelease Developer Tool user interface or refer to the names of any Prerelease 
Developer Tools unless expressly permitted by Adobe.

(B) Specific Limitations on Fonts. If any font listed at: https://www.adobe.com/go/restricted_fonts (or 
successor URL) is included with the Prerelease Developer Tools, you may only use the font in connection with the 
Prerelease Developer Tools. You may not copy, move, activate, or use (or allow any font management tool to copy, 
move, activate, or use) any of such fonts in or with any software application, program, or file other than the 
Prerelease Developer Tools.

9.3 Feedback. You agree to provide Feedback to us during the Testing Period, which may be provided to us 
generally. You grant to us a worldwide, perpetual, irrevocable, sublicensable, transferable, royalty-free, fully paid-
up license to make, use, sell, have made, offer to sell, import, export, reproduce, distribute, modify, publicly 
perform, publicly display, sublicense, and make derivative works based upon the Feedback. You represent and 
warrant that you have all rights necessary to provide the Feedback to us. We have no obligation to incorporate, 
use, or otherwise acknowledge any Feedback that you provide.

10. Confidential Information.

10.1 Non-Disclosure. You agree to hold Confidential Information in strict confidence and not disclose it to any 
other party except to your employees and authorized representatives who need to know the Confidential 
Information and are bound by confidentiality obligations at least as restrictive as the confidentiality provisions of 
these Terms before having access to Confidential Information. You are responsible for any breach of this 
confidentiality provision by any of your representatives. Except as expressly allowed in these Terms, you may not 
modify, create other works from, reverse engineer, or disassemble any software programs provided or disclosed as 
Confidential Information without our prior written consent. You agree to treat Confidential Information with the 

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 8 of 16

Page 22



same degree of care as you treat your own confidential, non-public materials but in no event with less than 
reasonable care. You will stop use of and return or destroy all tangible Confidential Information promptly upon 
request, together with any copies, except as otherwise required by law. You may disclose Confidential Information 
(A) as approved in a writing signed by us or (B) as necessary to respond to a valid order by a court or other 
governmental body, as required by law, or as necessary to establish the rights of either party, provided that you
promptly notify us upon receipt of the disclosure order and requests confidential treatment of any affected 
Confidential Information. If there is any inconsistency between this section and any existing obligations of non-
disclosure or confidentiality you already have to us, those existing obligations take precedence.

10.2 Prerelease Developer Tools. Except as otherwise agreed, your obligations to protect the confidentiality of 
any Prerelease Developer Tools will terminate upon the first generally available commercial release of such 
Prerelease Developer Tools. However, notwithstanding anything in the foregoing, any prerelease login identifiers, 
passwords, and API Keys are intended for use by you only and may not be shared with anyone else.

11. Your Warranty and Indemnification Obligations.

11.1 Your Warranties. By choosing to use the Developer Tools, you represent and warrant that (A) you have all 
necessary licenses, rights, and permissions to use all content that appears or is incorporated in your Developer 
Software and to grant the licenses in these Terms; and (B) the Developer Software does not infringe any of our or a 

Intellectual Property Rights.

11.2 Indemnification. You will indemnify us and our subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, agents, employees, partners,
and licensors from any claim, demand, loss,
related to (A) any breach of these Terms by you, including any breach or alleged breach of any representations and 
warranties made by you concerning any aspect of the Developer Software; (B) your use of the Developer Tools; 
(C) any alleged or actual violation of your obligations of privacy to any third party; (D) any End User claim related to 
the Developer Software, including but not limited to any allegations based on a product liability claim; and (E) any 
claim related to your agreement or relationship with an End User. We have the right to control the defense of any 
claim, action, or matter subject to indemnification by you with counsel of our own choosing, and you will fully 
cooperate with us in the defense of any such claim, action, or matter.

12. Disclaimers of Warranties. The Developer Tools - and to the maximum extent 
permitted by law, we disclaim all warranties related thereto, whether express or implied, including the implied 
warranties of non-infringement, merchantability, and fitness for a particular purpose. We make no 
commitments about the performance of the Developer Tools and further disclaim any warranty that (A) the 
Developer Tools will meet your requirements or will be constantly available, uninterrupted, timely, secure, or 
error-free; (B) the results obtained from the use of the Developer Tools will be effective, accurate, or reliable; 
(C) the quality of the Developer Tools will meet your expectations; or (D) any errors or defects in the Developer 
Tools will be corrected. We specifically disclaim all liability for any actions resulting from your use of the 
Developer Tools. You may use and access the Developer Tools at your own discretion and risk, and you are 
solely responsible for any damage to your computer system or loss of data that results from the use of and 
access to the Service or Developer Tools. We may update the Developer Tools, including any APIs, from time to 
time. Subsequent versions of the Developer Tools may not be compatible with Developer Software developed 
using previous versions of the Developer Tools.

13. Limitation of Liability. Unless stated in these Terms, we are not liable to you for any special, incidental, 
indirect, consequential, moral, exemplary, or punitive damages whatsoever, regardless of cause, including losses 
and damages (A) resulting from loss of use, data, reputation, revenue, or profits; (B) based on any theory of 
liability, including breach of contract or warranty, negligence, or other tortious action; or (C) arising out of or in 
connection with your use of or access to the Developer Tools. Our total liability in any matter arising out of or 
related to these Terms is limited to the greater of (A) US $100; or (B) the aggregate amount that you paid to 
Adobe for access to the Developer Tools during the three-month period preceding the event giving rise to the 
liability.

14. Termination and Removal.

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 9 of 16

Page 23



14.1 Termination by You. You may terminate your use of the Developer Tools or your access to Adobe Services 
or Adobe Software through your Developer Software at any time. Termination does not relieve you of any 
obligation existing prior to termination, including the obligation to pay any outstanding fees.

14.2 Termination by Us. We may terminate your rights under these Terms, deny use of the Developer Tools or 
access to Adobe Services or Adobe Software through your Developer Software, or revoke any assigned API Keys, at 
any time and for any reason. With respect to Prerelease Developer Tools, your rights under these Terms will 
terminate at the earlier of (A) the end of the Testing Period or (B) upon written notice from us.

14.3 Effect of Termination. Upon termination, you must immediately (A) stop distributing your Developer 
Software; (B) stop using the Developer Tools and the Adobe Trademarks; (C) stop accessing Adobe Services, Adobe 
Software, and Adobe Stock Works through your Developer Software; (D) stop advertising compatibility with any 
Adobe Services or Adobe Software; and (E) stop using and return or destroy all Confidential Information, including 
any versions of Prerelease Developer Tools, in your possession. 

14.4 Survival. All clauses that by their nature should survive the termination of these Terms will survive such 
termination. In addition, without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence, sections 1 (Your Agreement 
with Adobe), 2 (Definitions), 4.3 (Ownership), 4.5 (Third-Party Terms), 6 (Requirements and Restrictions), 11 (Your 
Warranty and Indemnification Obligations), 12 (Disclaimers of Warranties), 13 (Limitation of Liability), 14.3 (Effect 
of Termination), 15 (General), and 17.10 (Effect of Termination on Adobe Stock Works) will survive termination of 
these Terms.

15. General.

15.1 No Agency. Nothing in these Terms creates a fiduciary, agency, joint venture, employee/employer, 
partnership, or trust relationship between you and us. Neither you nor we may bind the other in any manner.

15.2 English Version. The English version of these Terms will be the version used when interpreting or construing 
these Terms.

15.3 Non-Assignment. You may not assign or otherwise transfer these Terms or your rights and obligations under 
these Terms, in whole or in part, without our written consent, and any such attempt will be void. We may transfer 
our rights under these Terms to a third party.

15.4 Headings. Headings used in these Terms are provided for convenience only and will not be used to construe 
meaning or intent.

15.5 Severability. If any provision of these Terms is held invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder 
of these Terms will continue in full force and effect.

15.6 No Waiver. Our failure to enforce or exercise any provision of these Terms is not a waiver of that provision.

15.7 Remedies. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these Terms, breach of these Terms by you may cause 
us irreparable damage for which recovery of money damages will be inadequate, and we will be entitled to seek 
timely injunctive relief to protect our rights under these Terms without the posting of a bond in addition to seeking 
any and all remedies available at law. If any legal action is brought to enforce these Terms, the prevailing party will 

it may receive.

15.8 Entire Agreement and Precedence. Except for any applicable terms from the Adobe General Terms of Use 
(https://www.adobe.com/go/terms_en) or your enterprise agreement with Adobe 
(https://www.adobe.com/legal/terms/enterprise-licensing/overview.html), these Terms constitute the entire 
agreement between the parties regarding the subject hereof and supersede all prior or contemporaneous 
agreements, understandings, and communication, whether written or oral. If there is any inconsistency or conflict
between these Terms and any other agreement you have with Adobe, unless explicitly stated in such other 
agreement, these Terms take precedence. 

16. Product Specific Terms for Adobe InDesign SDK and API

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 10 of 16

Page 24



16.1 You may compile Sample Code in the InDesign SDK and API with a unique plug-in ID. If you distribute 
modified or merged versions of the Sample Code, you must replace any plug-in ID included in any Sample Code 
with a unique plug-in ID specific to you. Instructions for requesting a unique plug-in ID may be found  at 
https://developer.adobe.com/developer-distribution/creative-cloud/docs/guides/plugin_id (or successor URL). 

16.2 The APIs in the InDesign Server SDK for the World Ready Composer are created for internal development of 
software designed to function with InDesign Server. We do not support internal development of software designed 
to function with InDesign and/or InCopy using the World Ready Composer APIs. 

 
17. Product Specific Terms for Adobe Stock SDK and API 

17.1 Definitions. 

(A) Adobe Stock Affiliate Partner(s)
partner program for the promotion of Adobe Stock under a separate written agreement with us. 

(B) Asset Management Service(s)
party services, that allow users to search for and license Adobe Stock Works, as well as to organize, select, and 
maintain records related to Adobe Stock Works, including systematically connecting licensed Adobe Stock Works 

 

(C) Marketing Platform(s)
creation tools, such as websites and ad builders, email, content marketing, and social media, to promote or sell 
third party products or services. 

(D) Print-on-Demand
solely to create customized (1
and (2) units of tangible goods intended for sale to a single End User. 

(E) Third Party Software Integration(s)
or APIs to include access to Adobe Stock Works in custom applications. 

17.2 Login, Search, and License Services. If your Developer Software is for Asset Management Services, Print-on-
Demand, Third-Party Software Integrations, or Marketing Platforms, you may use the Adobe Stock SDKs and APIs 
solely to enable Adobe customers: (A) to log in to the applicable Adobe Stock customer account through your 
Developer Software, if you first obtain express permission from the Adobe customer to access the applicable 

 

17.3 Affiliate Partners. If your Developer Software is for Adobe Stock Affiliate Partners, you may use the Adobe 
Stock SDKs and APIs and Adobe Stock Works solely to promote Adobe Stock, subject to the Adobe Stock Affiliate 

agreement with us. 

17.4 Use of Adobe Stock Works. 

(A) Any use of Adobe Stock Works requires your separate agreement with Adobe. If we grant you access to 
Adobe Stock Works, you may use them solely to develop and deploy Developer Software for Adobe Stock Affiliate 
Partners, Asset Management Services, Marketing Platforms, Print-on-Demand, and Third-Party Software 
Integrations. Adobe Stock Works may not be copied, distributed, altered, or displayed other than as permitted by 
these Terms. You may not allow any Adobe Stock Work to be downloaded from your Developer Software as a 
standalone file, unless licensed to the End User by Adobe Stock. If your Developer Software is for Asset 
Management Services, Marketing Platforms, Print-on-Demand, or Third-Party Software Integrations, you may 
allow third parties to view watermarked or thumbnail versions of the Adobe Stock Works that have not been 
licensed. 

(B) 
 

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 11 of 16

Page 25



(C) You must not take any action in connection with the Adobe Stock Work that infringes the Intellectual 
Property Rights or other rights of any person or entity, such as the moral rights of the creator of the Adobe Stock 
Work and the rights of any person who, or any person whose property, appears in the Adobe Stock Work. 

(D) You must not register, or apply to register, a trademark, design mark, tradename, logo, or service mark that 
uses an Adobe Stock Work (in whole or in part) or claim ownership rights in an attempt to prevent any third party 
from using the Adobe Stock Work.  

(E) You must not use the Adobe Stock Work in a pornographic, defamatory, or otherwise unlawful manner.  

(F) You must not use the Adobe Stock Work in a way that depicts models or property in connection with a 
subject that a reasonable person could consider unflattering, immoral, or controversial, considering the nature of 
the Adobe Stock Work.  

(G) You must not remove, obscure, or alter any proprietary notices associated with the Adobe Stock Works, or 
give any express or implied misrepresentation that you or another third party are the creator or copyright holder 
of any Adobe Stock Work. 

(H) You must not display or disclose to your website users any download data (e.g., number of downloads) or 
upload date of the Adobe Stock Works. 

17.5 Editorial Adobe Stock Works. If your Developer Software is for (A) Adobe Stock Affiliate Partners, Marketing 
Platforms, Print-on-Demand, or Third Party Software Integrations that have not received express written 
authorization from Adobe, you may not access, use, 
the file name or metadata; or (B) Asset Management Services or authorized Third Party Software Integrations, you 

tock Work that includes 
 

17.6 Credit and Disclaimer. Your Developer Software must clearly and conspicuously display attribution to Adobe 
https://stock.adobe.com (or successor 

URL) and visible to End Users of your Developer Software; and you must place the following disclaimer on the 

sponsored by Adobe. [Your Name] is not affil  

17.7 Trade and Advertising. In addition to your obligations under section 6.5 (Trade Controls), your display of the 
Adobe Stock Works must comply with all applicable trade and advertising rules and regulations. 

17.8 Caching. You must not cache or store any Adobe Stock Works or other data obtained via the Adobe Stock 
SDKs or APIs beyond a reasonable time, and no longer than as necessary to operate the Developer Software. You 
must refresh the collection of Adobe Stock Works and other data obtained via the Adobe Stock SDKs or APIs no 
less than once per day. We are not responsible for any claims arising from your failure to refresh the collection of 
Adobe Stock Work.  

17.9 Machine Learning and Artificial Intelligence. You must not use the Adobe Stock SDKs or APIs or the Adobe 
Stock Works or any title, caption information, keywords, or other metadata associated with the Adobe Stock 
Works for any (a) machine learning or artificial intelligence training purposes; or (b) technologies designed or 
intended for the identification of natural persons. 

17.10 Effect of Termination on Adobe Stock Works. Without limiting section 14.3 (Effect of Termination), upon 
the earlier of termination of these Terms or request by us, you must immediately cease all use of and remove any 
versions of the Adobe Stock Works from your Developer Software that have not been otherwise licensed from us. 
We will have no liability for claims arising out of your use of locally stored Adobe Stock Works.

17.11 Reservation. We may modify or discontinue the Adobe Stock SDKs or APIs, or the licensing or downloading 
of any Adobe Stock Work at any time. 

 
18. Product Specific Terms for Adobe Typekit API 

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 12 of 16

Page 26



18.1 Web Projects for Published Websites. You must use a Web Project (and may not use the Web Font Preview 
API or Web Open Font Format (WOFF)) to load Adobe Fonts for published websites. Web Project
software package you create through Adobe Fonts that comprises your preferred settings, font selections, formats, 
style sheets, and other software code, along with any code that wraps and identifies each font. 

18.2 Web Authoring. Adobe Fonts can only be used for the web authoring of content that is published as HTML 
and includes a Web Project. You may not convert or rasterize web fonts served by Adobe Fonts into any other 
format, such as PDF or any graphics format. 

 
19. Product Specific Terms for Adobe Exchange. 

19.1 Fees and Revenue Share. For Developer Software submitted to and distributed through Adobe Exchange, 
we will pay you in accordance with these Terms and the payment policies currently at 
https://partners.adobe.com/exchangeprogram/creativecloud/support/ae-payment-policy.html (or successor URL) 
(collectively, Adobe Exchange Payment Policies , and refunds. 

19.2 Submitting Your Developer Software. The version of your Developer Software that you submit through 
Adobe Exchange must comply with our current Submission Guidelines and must have gone through your own 
quality assurance testing. The approval requirements in section 5.1 (Approval by Adobe) apply to your Developer 
Software and we may accept or reject your Developer Software in our sole discretion. Adobe may remove 
Developer Software from Adobe Exchange at any time for any reason without liability to you. 

 
20. Product Specific Terms for Document Cloud. 

20.1 General Terms for Document Cloud. The following terms apply to PDF Embed API, PDF Services API, Adobe 
Acrobat Sign API, and Acrobat SDK  

(A) Usage Limits. We set and enforce usage limits on your access and use of Document Cloud SDKs or APIs. You 
agree to, and will not attempt to circumvent, such limitations documented on the Adobe I/O website at 
https://www.adobe.io. If you would like to use any Document Cloud SDK or API beyond these limits, you must 
obtain our express consent, in which case we may decline such a request or condition acceptance on your 
agreement to Product Specific Terms or charges (or both) for that use. To make such a request, contact either the 
Adobe Document Services marketing and sales team or the Acrobat Sign marketing and sales team for more 
information. 

(B) Content and Usage Tracking. You acknowledge and agree that we may collect information about your 
content and usage of Document Cloud SDKs or APIs, including personal information, and may use such information 
to maintain security, monitor performance, and otherwise improve the quality of the Document Cloud SDKs or 
APIs offered. 

(C) End User License Agreement or Terms of Service. Use of other Adobe Software or Adobe Services is subject 
to the applicable end user license agreement or terms of service for that Adobe Software or Adobe Services 
offering, even if such other Adobe Software or Adobe Services are supplied to you in connection with these Terms. 

20.2 PDF Embed API. The following terms apply to PDF Embed API only: 

(A) Approval Process. You are free to make Developer Software commercially available without going through 
the approval process described in section 5.1 (Approval by Adobe). Notwithstanding this, you will make available 
Developer Software for review upon our request and cooperate with our review.  

(B) PDF Embed API Usage Tracking. We may track your usage of PDF Embed API as a whole (e.g., which 
functionalities you are using in an API from PDF Embed API). Where you are also an Adobe Analytics subscriber, 
our tracking of other usage data is governed by the applicable agreement for Adobe Analytics.

(C) Attribution. Your Developer Software must clearly and conspicuously display attribution to Adobe 
Document  
http://acrobat.adobe.com and visible to End Users of your Developer Software.

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 13 of 16

Page 27



20.3 PDF Services API. The following terms apply to PDF Services API only:

(A) Approval Process. So long as you conform to the quota and usage limits for Free Tier available at 
www.adobe.com/go/dcsdk_doc_services_meter (or successor URL), you are free to make Developer Software 
commercially available only internal business purposes without needing to go through the approval process 
outlined in section 5.1 (Approval by Adobe). If you are seeking to sell, distribute, offer, or otherwise make 
commercially available Developer Software designed to interoperate with the APIs of PDF Services API (1) at a 
higher quota, or (2) in a way beyond the given usage limits of Free Tier, we require approval of your Developer 
Software, which may be satisfied when you obtain a production license from us via a separate written agreement.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this section, we may still require you to make available your
Developer Software for review upon our request and you acknowledge and agree to cooperate with our review.

(B) Attribution. Your Developer Software must clearly and conspicuously display attribution to Adobe 
Document 
http://acrobat.adobe.com and visible to End Users of your Developer Software.

20.4 Adobe Acrobat Sign API. The following terms apply to Acrobat Sign API only:

(A) Signature. You will not and may not enable any third party to modify, replace, or attempt to validate any 
digital signature validation functionality or capability of any Adobe electronic signature service without first 
obtaining written approval from us.

(B) You may not incorporate the Bulk Sign feature in Developer Software.

(C) You must enter into a separate written agreement with us if you wish to sell, distribute, or offer Developer 
Software that is designed to interoperate with Acrobat Sign API.

(D) Attribution. Your Developer Software must clearly and conspicuously display attribution to Acrobat Sign API 
Acrobat 

http://acrobat.adobe.com/us/en/sign.html and visible to End Users of your Developer Software.

20.5 Acrobat SDK. The following terms apply to Acrobat SDK only:

(A) You must not use Acrobat SDK to create, develop, or use any program, software, or service that:

(1) can communicate with Adobe Reader products and modify or save a PDF document (including saving any 
modifications to a separate file for such documents);

(2) exposes header file information;

(3) works as a plug-in with Adobe Reader products (unless specifically licensed to do so); 

(4) modifies permissions or rights in a PDF document, including, but not limited to, violating access rights 
specified for a PDF document, such as opening encrypted PDF documents without the authorized knowledge of 
PDF document passwords;

(5) modifies Adobe Acrobat software capabilities without written approval from Adobe, including without 
limitation modifying e-signature validation functionality; or

(6) enables Adobe Acrobat products to run on a server.

21. Product Specific Terms for Licensed Fonts.

21.1 Definitions.

(A) Embed Embedded
Software solely to enable End Users to see the Licensed Fonts display as intended in the Developer Software. 

(B) Licensed Fonts
Clean UX Variable, and Adobe Clean Han) that we license to you solely to design, develop, and distribute user 
interfaces in the Developer Software.

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 14 of 16

Page 28



21.2 Limited License. We grant you a non-exclusive, worldwide, non-transferable, limited license solely to (A) use 
the unmodified Licensed Fonts to design and develop the Developer Software and with no other software; (B) 
Embed the unmodified Licensed Fonts into the Developer Software; and (C) distribute and publicly display the 
Licensed Fonts as Embedded in the Developer Software to enable End Users to view the Licensed Fonts as 
intended in the user interface of the Developer Software. 

21.3 Requirements. 
the WOFF version of the Licensed Fonts in web-based versions of the Developer Software and not the OpenType 

21.4 Restrictions and Obligations.

(A) You are prohibited from using the Licensed Fonts in any manner not expressly permitted in these Terms. 

(B) Your Developer Software may not contain functionality that allows export of the Licensed Fonts. You may 
not distribute any portion of the Licensed Fonts on a standalone basis or in any way that would allow anyone else 
to use the Licensed Fonts.

(C) You may not add any functionality to, or otherwise change, alter, adapt, translate, convert, modify, create, 
or make or have made any derivatives of any portion of the Licensed Fonts.

(D) You may not assign, rent, lease, lend, trade, sublicense, or otherwise transfer the licenses granted to you in 
these Terms. 

(E) You may not share your access to the Licensed Fonts or make the Licensed Fonts available on a server that 
enables the Licensed Fonts to be used simultaneously by more than one computer.

(F) You may not use the Licensed Fonts to render, manufacture, or capture glyphs, in whole or in part, for use 
as a font or typesetting system.

(G) You may not disassemble, decompile, reverse engineer, or otherwise attempt to discover the source code of 
the Licensed Fonts, or defeat, bypass, or otherwise circumvent any software protection mechanisms in the 
Licensed Fonts, except to the extent the foregoing restriction is prohibited by applicable law. You may not 
unbundle or repackage the component parts of Licensed Fonts for distribution, transfer, or resale.

(H) The Licensed Fonts may contain proprietary notices, including patent, copyright, and trademark notices. You 
must preserve exactly as provided (and not remove or alter) all such proprietary notices displayed in or on the 
Licensed Fonts.

21.5 Continuing Access to the Licensed Fonts. Ongoing access to the Licensed Fonts may require a recurring 
internet connection to use the Licensed Fonts, or to authorize, renew, or validate your access to the Licensed 
Fonts.

22. Product Specific Terms for Substance SDK only.

22.1 Notwithstanding section 4.1(A)(2) (License to You), your right to distribute the Substance SDK is limited to 
distribution of the Substance Engine only. Substance Engine ies
folder of the Substance SDK. 

23. Product Specific Terms for Developer Mode of Adobe Express Add-on Marketplace.

23.1 Third-Party Payment Processors. You may use third-party payment processors to facilitate purchases of 
Developer Software distributed through the Adobe Express Add-on Marketplace. Any purchases of Development 
Software facilitated by such third-party payment processors must occur outside of Adobe Express. Furthermore, 
you acknowledge and agree that we have no liability for any disputes related to the associated payment 
transactions. 

24.   Product Specific Terms for Express Embed SDK

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 15 of 16

Page 29



24.1 You agree to submit your proposed integration of the Express Embed SDK for approval prior to making it 
available to the public, and to abide by the guidelines found at https://www.adobe.com/go/embed-sdk-review (or 
successor URL). If applicable, Adobe reserves the right to display a notice to your end users that the experience 
powered by Adobe Express has not been approved. 

 

 

Developer-Terms-en_US-20240618 

Manager's Report No. 26-03 - Attachment: 
Adobe Developer Terms of Service Agreement 
Page 16 of 16

Page 30



 

 

Namahana Education Foundation / PO Box 1353  Kilauea, HI 96754 / www.namahana.org 

 

Namahana Education Foundation  

4551 Kapuna Road  
Kīlauea, HI 96754 
August 10, 2025 
 

Ms. Cherisse Zaima Commission Support Clerk  

Department of Water – County of Kauaʻi  

4398 Pua Loke Street  
Līhu‘e, HI 96766 
 

ATTN: Ms. Julie Simonton, Chair Board of Water Supply 

 
Dear Chair Simonton and Members of the Board, 
 
On behalf of the Namahana Education Foundation, I respectfully submit this formal appeal of 
the Department of Water’s denial of our request for a 1½-inch water meter for the construction 
of Phase I of Namahana School’s campus. We are requesting to be placed on the Board of 
Water Supply August board meeting agenda for consideration by the Board for an exception for 
water service for Namahana School. 
 
Namahana Schoolʻs mission is to serve the communities of Halele‘a and Ko‘olau with rigorous 
‘āina-based education the cultivates deep relationships with the ‘āina (natural environment) 
kanaka (self, family, community), and ao (cultures of the world).   
 
On August 4, 2025, our community experienced a historic milestone as Namahana School 
welcomed its inaugural cohort of 120 students and became the first public, tuition-free charter 
post-primary school serving Kauaʻi’s North Shore.  Parents and community members celebrated 
this monumental opening day, which addressed a decades long community need for a public 
middle and high school on the North Shore.  Families and students from the North Shore have 
had to endure daily commutes of up to three hours to the nearest public middle or high school. 
Today, 120 students no longer face an exhausting commute, parents are now engaged in their 
child’s school, and the community has a local public school option where students can grow and 
learn 
 
In addition to serving our current families, Namahana school will also alleviate the need for a 
local public school option for families residing in the future affordable housing development 
that will be located across the street from our school.   
 
We understand that Namahana School is located in a water restricted area and have taken 
precautions to design our school with water conservation in mind.   Namahana School’s request 

Page 31



for the 1½-inch meter is limited to servicing only Phase I of the campus, which will serve two 
grades only.  As an Āina-based school with Aloha ‘Āina as one of the core driving values for 
Namahana School, we plan to install low-flow fixtures to further reduce demand and 
implement conservation-minded water use practices for students and staff.   
 
Namahana School is currently operating out of a temporary facility and must complete Phase I 
permanent structures by Fall 2026.  Namahana School’s success hinges on reliable 
infrastructure. Without water service, the school’s ability to operate—and the community’s 
years-long investment in its creation—will be jeopardized. This would also risk forfeiture of our 
charter with the state and undermine the future of public education on the North Shore.  With 
a tight timeline to complete construction and permits currently under review, receiving an 
approval for water service now will allow us to complete or permitting process and move into 
our construction phase. 
 
Namahana School is aware of Department of Water infrastructure improvements that are soon 
to be under construction to upgrade source and storage potable water capacities for the 
Kilauea area.  We anticipate by the time construction is completed for the school 
improvements the water infrastructure improvements may also be completed.  This alignment 
of school improvements along with water infrastructure improvements will likely limit impacts 
to the existing water service for the Kilauea area 
 
We respectfully urge the Board to approve the 1½-inch meter to support this vital community 
project. Namahana School represents not just bricks and mortar—but a place where 
generations of North Shore children will be able to grow and learn, deeply rooted in ‘āina and in 
partnership with our community.   
 
Thank you for your thoughtful consideration of this appeal.  
 
Melanie Parker 
 
 
Executive Director 
Namahana Education Foundation 
 
 

Page 32



 

Staff 

Reports 

Page 33



 
FISCAL DIVISION DASHBOARD 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 -
 200
 400
 600
 800

 1,000
 1,200
 1,400
 1,600
 1,800
 2,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

# of Customer Service Calls

# of Phone Calls FY2025 # of Phone Calls FY2026

 -

 200

 400

 600

 800

 1,000

 1,200

 1,400

 1,600

 1,800

 2,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

# of Walk in Customers

# of Walk in Customers FY2025 # of Walk in Customers FY2026

 

 -
 200
 400
 600
 800

 1,000
 1,200
 1,400
 1,600

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

# of Customer Emails and Correspondence

# of Customer Emails FY2025 # of Customer Emails FY2026

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June

# of Customer Rebills

# of Customer Rebills FY2025 # of Customer Rebills FY2026

Page 34



 
FISCAL DIVISION DASHBOARD 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

99

127

366

11,916 

10,164 

0 5000 10000 15000

AP Payments

pCard

Journal Entries

Customer Payments - Internal

Customer Payments - External

Accounting Highlights
Transponder Replacement Highlights:  
 

 337 Transponders Replaced in July 
2025. 

 82% Replaced to date. 
 2% Failed; awaiting replacement. 
 16% Active; expected to fail soon. 

 $-

 $2,000

 $4,000

 $6,000

 $8,000

 $10,000

 $12,000

 $14,000

 $16,000

 $18,000

Overtime

Budget FY2025
Actual

FY2026
Actual

Monthly Transactional Volume processed and reconciled by the Accounting Team. 

 

 

1,249 

2,823 

8,456 

6,229 

18,757 
394 

 -  2,000  4,000  6,000  8,000  10,000  12,000  14,000  16,000  18,000  20,000

2022 AND PRIOR

2023

2024

2025

TOTAL

Transponder Replacement Progress (Calendar Year)

# Open Field Activities (FA) # of Transponders Replaced

Page 35



Budget Actual Variance Year to Date Budget Year to Date Actual Variance Variance %
 

Operating
Revenue 2,995,974.00$                 3,119,609.58$                        123,635.58$                        2,995,974.00$                     3,119,609.58$                    123,635.58$                      4.1.%

  
Expenses  
Labor * 1,278,478.42$                 1,267,670.02$                        10,808.40$                          1,278,478.42$                     1,267,670.02$                    10,808.40$                         0.8.%
Services 1,361,349.08                    95,957.80                                1,265,391.28                       1,361,349.08                       95,957.80                            1,265,391.28                     93.0.%
Utilities & Materials 797,635.75                       122,302.56                              675,333.19                         797,635.75                          122,302.56                          675,333.19                         84.7.%
Total Operating Expenses 3,437,463.25$                 1,485,930.38$                        1,951,532.87$                   3,437,463.25$                     1,485,930.38$                    1,951,532.87$                   56.8.%

Debt Service Principal & Interest 4,560,400.00                    511,953.45                              4,048,446.55                      4,560,400.00                       511,953.45                          4,048,446.55                     88.8.%
Operating and Debt Expenses 7,997,863.25$                 1,997,883.83$                        5,999,979.42$                   7,997,863.25$                     1,997,883.83$                    5,999,979.42$                   75.0.%

 
Net Income (Loss) (5,001,889.25)$     1,121,725.75$            6,123,615.00$        (5,001,889.25)$        1,121,725.75$         6,123,615.00$        122.4.%

* Current month's labor is estimated
 

Capital Projects and Purchases**
Fiscal Year Budget YTD 2026 Actual Remaining Budget

Water Utility Funded Projects 
WU-IT-RandR Capital Purchases-- 57,665.38$                       57,665.38$                         
WU-IT-Expansion Capital Purchases-- 978,197.32                       59,574.33                                918,622.99                         
WU-Eng-ALLR-17-10-KW-07 Paua Valley Tank Repair 9,407.62                           9,407.62                             
WU-Eng-ALLR-Hanapepe Stream Crossing 54,498.95                         54,498.95                           
WU-Eng 11-04 LO-10 Lawai 6n8inch Main Replacement 75,324.96                         75,324.96                           
WU-Eng WK-08, Kapaa Homesteads 2-0.5MG Tanks 2,597,000.00                    2,597,000.00                      
WU -23-05 Weke, Anae, Mahimahi Hee 6-8 inch mains 3,424,663.00                    3,424,663.00                      
WU-Eng-23-08 Hanapepe Town Well  MCC 502,319.08                       502,319.08                         
WU-Eng-Job 18-3 -Kuhio Hwy Hardy-Oxford 16IN Main 3,199,896.96                    3,199,896.96                      
WU-Eng-56%R-Job 23-03 Kuhio Hwy Papaloa to Waikaea 69,074.57                         69,074.57                           
WU-Eng-16-4-WKK-03-Kilauea Wells MCC Rehab 233,462.60                       233,462.60                         
WU-Eng Phase I-Demo Admin Bldg/MoveConduit/ATS Lab 230,700.00                       230,700.00                         
WU-23-02 WK-34, Kuamoo Rd 8" Main Replace (6,500') 99,063.00                         99,063.00                           
WU-Eng-WK-08-Kapaa Homesteads 2-0.5MG Tanks 400,000.00                       400,000.00                         
WU-Eng-WK-39 Kapaa Homesteads Well #4 Pump&Control 2,400,000.00                    2,400,000.00                      
WU-Eng PLH-35b, Kapaia Cane Haul Road 18" Main Env 1,124,375.70                    1,124,375.70                      
WU-Eng-Security Fencing Admin Bldg 368,315.39                       368,315.39                         
WU-Eng-Expansion Capital Purchases 13,867.01                         13,867.01                           
Job 17-10 KW-07 Paua Valley Tank Repair 278,450.95                       278,450.95                         
WU-Cns-44%R-09-01 Yamada Tank Clearwell, Conn Pipe 2,520,810.21                    2,520,810.21                      
WU-Const-R&R-Tank Remediation Repair 32,899.55                         32,899.55                           
Job 16-02 PLH-35B Kapaia Cane Haul Rd 18" Main 2,990,220.00                    2,990,220.00                      
Job 02-14 WK39 WK08 Kapaa Hmstd Well 4; Pkg A Well 194,120.62                       194,120.62                         
WU-Ops-R&R-Upgrade and Replace SCADA RTU and PLC 19,498.65                         19,498.65                           
WU-Ops-RandR Capital Purchases 3,274,252.87                    139,721.25                              3,134,531.62                      

July 2025

Department Of Water Budget Report for July 2025

Fiscal Year 2026

Page 36



WU-Ops-Expansion Capital Purchases 1,355,094.26                    1,355,094.26                      
26,503,178.65$               199,295.58$                            26,303,883.07$                 

FRC Funded Projects
FRC-Eng-ALLE--H-08 Hanalei Well 2 130,000.00$                     130,000.00$                       
FRC-Eng WK-08, Kapaa Homesteads 2-0.5MG Tanks 3,000,000.00                    3,000,000.00                      
FRC-Eng-ALLE-12-02 WK-23 UH Expmntal Storage Tank 198,957.00                       198,957.00                         
FRC Eng 04-08 WK-39 Drill Kapaa Homestead Well 4 102,328.99                       102,328.99                         
FRC-Eng-90%E-Kilauea 1.0MG Tank Job 02-06 7,212.24                           7,212.24                             
Job 15-08-HW-11-Haena 0.2MG Tank 1,306.63                           1,306.63                             
FRC-Eng-ALLE-Wainiha Well #4 200,000.00                       200,000.00                         
Projects with budget but no activity -                                       

3,639,804.86$                 -$                                          3,639,804.86$                   

Build America Bonds Funded Projects
Eng-ALLR-09-01 K-01 Kalaheo 1111FT & 1222FT 63,998.94$                       63,998.94$                         
Eng-ALLE-02-14 WK-08 Kapaa Homesteads Tank 5,600,000.00                    5,600,000.00                      
Eng WK-39, Drill/Dev Kapaa Homesteads Well No4 2,600,000.00                    2,600,000.00                      
Cns-ALLE-02-06WKK15-Kilauea 466 Tank Puu Pane 9,706.76                           9,706.76                             
Eng-98%E-02-01 Land for Kukuiolono Tank Site 53,508.05                         53,508.05                           
Cons-Exp-Kapaia Cane Haul Road 1,091,650.00                    1,091,650.00                      

9,418,863.75$                 -$                                          9,418,863.75$                   

State Revolving Funded Projects
WK-08, Kapaa Homsteads 2.0 5MG Tanks 5,200,000.00$                 5,200,000.00$                   
Yamada Tank Conn Pipe 4,128,478.23                    4,128,478.23                      

9,328,478.23$                 -$                                          9,328,478.23$                   

Total Capital Projects 48,890,325.49$               199,295.58$                            48,691,029.91$                 

Selected Divisions

Budget Actual Variance Year to Date Budget Year to Date Actual Variance Variance %
Engineering 931,395.00$                     283,813.28$                            647,581.72$                       931,395.00$                        283,813.28$                        647,581.72$                      69.5.%
Fiscal 234,918.00                       203,079.72                              31,838.28                           234,918.00                          203,079.72                          31,838.28                           13.6.%
Operations 1,441,899.00                    773,277.71                              668,621.29                         1,441,899.00                       773,277.71                          668,621.29                         46.4.%

2,608,212.00$                 1,260,170.71$                        1,348,041.29$                   2,608,212.00$                     1,260,170.71$                    1,348,041.29$                   51.7.%

July 2025 Fiscal Year 2026

Page 37



OPERATIONS DASHBOARD

Ops Highlights:
1. Pipefitter Helper on continuous 

recruitment. Recruited for Equipment 
Operator II, Water Service Supervisor 
III, Program Support Assistant II, 
Waterworks Programs Assistant, 
Water Meter Repair Supervisor, 
Water Service Investigator II, 
Maintenance Worker Aide, and 
Building Maintenance Supervisor.

2. Meter transponder changeout in 
progress, over 400 meters replaced 
last month.

3. DSO/WTPO exam given in July.

500
W

28.0%

14.6%
4.7% 5.9%

13.2% 8.3%

0.0%

17.2%
5.3%

14.4% 11.0% 13.2%

167.62
$156,640 

85.62
$77,431 

25.57
$23,898 

29.35
$26,544 

64.78…
40.29

$37,652 
-0.01
($7)

88.24
$82,463 

25.67
$23,215 

73.14
$68,344 59.59

$53,885 

75.73
$70,771 

($20,000)
$0
$20,000
$40,000
$60,000
$80,000
$100,000
$120,000
$140,000
$160,000
$180,000

-50,000
0

50,000
100,000
150,000
200,000
250,000
300,000
350,000
400,000
450,000
500,000

Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25

Fi
na

nc
ia

l I
m

pa
ct

 ($
)

W
at

er
 V

ol
um

e 
(1

00
0 

ga
l)

Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25
Produced (Kgals) 452,933 428,498 412,714 361,950 370,356 368,847 335,512 387,916 356,362 384,673 397,151 432,800

Customer Read (Kgals) 326,039 365,771 393,354 340,447 321,320 338,345 335,518 321,113 337,556 329,308 353,499 375,469

Non-Rev Water (Kgals) 126,894 62,727 19,360 21,503 49,036 30,502 -6 66,803 18,806 55,365 43,652 57,331

Financial Impact $156,640 $77,431 $23,898 $26,544 $60,531 $37,652 ($7) $82,463 $23,215 $68,344 $53,885 $70,771

Monthly Water Audit
August 2024 - July 2025

Annual
Financial Impact

$681,367

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25 Feb-25 Mar-25 Apr-25 May-25 Jun-25 Jul-25

Level of Service

Number of Tasks Initiated Number of Tasks Completed Number of Mainline Leak Repairs

Number of Service Lateral Leak  Repairs Number of Fleet Requests Received Number of Fleet Requests Completed

 $-

 $5,000.00

 $10,000.00

 $15,000.00

 $20,000.00

 $25,000.00

 $30,000.00

 $35,000.00

 $40,000.00

 $45,000.00

 $50,000.00

Au
g-

24

Se
p-

24

O
ct

-2
4

N
ov

-2
4

De
c-

24

Ja
n-

25

Fe
b-

25

M
ar

-2
5

Ap
r-

25

M
ay

-2
5

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

Overtime

Monthly Budget ($) Monthly Actual ($)

Page 38



OPERATIONS

Last Month Current Month Previous FY Current FY
Year to Date Year to Date

STAFFING
Budgeted Staff | Vacancies 46 13 46 13 49 10 46 13

OVERTIME
Budget ($) | Actual ($) $25,416.67 $27,211.49 $34,166.67 $35,330.54 $25,416.67 $40,124.98 $34,166.67 $35,330.54

FLEET MANAGEMENT

# of Fleet Requests Received 10 19 21 19
# of Fleet Requests Completed 14 23 19 23
METER PROGRAM
# of Existing Meters Replaced 1 1 164 1
# of Existing Meters Repaired 593 416 618 416

# of New Meters Installed 12 19 4 19
# of New Laterals Installed 0 0 1 0

Page 39



OPERATIONS

LEVEL OF SERVICE

Last Current Previous Current

Month Month FY YTD FY YTD

# of Tasks Initiated
2287 2596 2904 2596

# of Tasks Completed 2676 2518 3108 2518

# of Mainline Leak Repairs 12 17 20 17

# of Service Lateral Leak Repairs 10 14 22 14

# of Calls for Service 184 169 210 169

# of Temporary Hydrant Meters Installed
6 1 3 1

# One Call Request Received | Completed 65 82 81 75 27 20 81 75

# of Hydrant Hits 3 2 2 2

WATER AUDIT
Last

Current Month
Previous Current

Month FY YTD FY YTD
Water Produced 397.151 432.800 441.367 432.800
(Million Gallons)
Customer Meter 

Reading
353.499 375.469 290.208 375.469

(Million Gallons)
Non-Revenue 

Water
43.652 57.331 151.159 57.331

(Million Gallons)

Non-revenue % 11% 13% 34% 13%

Financial Impact $53,884.90 $70,770.53 $186,593.69 $70,770.53

Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Admin (16)
37.5%

Engineering (25)
16.0%

Fiscal (18)
0.0%

Operations (60)
23.3%

% Vacancy Within Each Division Level

Division (# Auth) - % Vacant

Page 43



 
DEPARTMENT OF WATER 

County of Kauaʻi 

“Water has no substitute – Conserve It!” 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

MANAGER’S UPDATE 
 
August 21, 2025 
 
Pursuant to Board Policy No. 3 

 
1. 4TH YEAR AUDIT FOR CONTRACT NO. 724 WITH N&K CPAs, INC. 

ANNUAL AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2022, JUNE 30, 2023, 
JUNE 30, 2024, JUNE 30, 2025, AND JUNE 30, 2026 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Manager approve the 4th Year Audit for Contract No. 724 with N&K 
CPAs, Inc. to conduct the financial audits of the Department of Water’s Financial Statements for 
its 4th Fiscal Year FY ending June 30, 2025. 
 
FUNDING: 
Account No. 10-31-10-540-020  
Acct Description WU/Acctg/Admin/Accounting and Auditing (Auditor)  
Funds Available Verified by WWC  $100,100.00 
    
Contract No. 724   
Vendor N&K CPAs, Inc.   
 Contract Amount (FY 2022) $107,800.00  

 5% Contingency $N/A  

 2nd Year Audit $95,900.00  

 3rd Year Audit $98,000.00  

 Total Funds Certified To Date $301,700.00  

    

4th Year Audit:   
Annual Audit for the 4th Fiscal Year (FY) Ending 
June 30, 2025 $100,100.00  

 Total for 4th Year Audit $100,100.00 <$100,100.00> 

    

Contract Amount To Date $401,800.00  

    
 
BACKGROUND: 
Contract NTP Date:   June 28, 2022  
Original Contract End Date:  June 26, 2027  
New Contract End Date:  N/A  
 
The DOW entered into Contract No. 724, with N&K CPAs, Inc. to provide financial audit 
services for the Department of Water for fiscal years ending June 30, 2022, 2023, 2024, 2025, 
and 2026. 

Page 44



Manager’s Update -  July 2025 to August 2025 
August 21, 2025 RBM 
 

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

 
 Fiscal Year Recurring Audit Single Audit  Total Proposed Fees 
 
      2022        $88,000       $19,800          $107,800 
      2023        $76,000       $19,900          $  95,900 
      2024        $78,000       $20,000          $  98,000 
      2025        $80,000       $20,100          $100,100 
      2026        $82,000       $20,200          $102,200 
 
These fees include normal out-of-pocket expenses and are inclusive of Hawaii general excise 
taxes.  The above fee represents the all-inclusive amount that will be charged for the financial 
and single audits for each year. 
 
We have reviewed the breakdown of the estimated hours, rate of pay and out-of-pocket costs 
shown by N&K CPAs, Inc.  We find the fees to be reasonable and are commensurate with the 
level of experience and effort required to complete the 4th year audit engagement. 
 
 
2. YEAR 2 SERVICES FOR CONTRACT 733 WITH DOXIM DBA UTILITEC 

JOB NO. SS-2024-02, CUSTOMER CARE & BILLING (CC&B) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Manager approve the 2nd Year Services with Doxim dba Utilitec for 
Customer Care & Billing (CC&B) services. 
 
FUNDING: 
Account No. 10-30-20-541-020  
Acct Description WU/Bill/Collection/Billing Costs (Bill Processing Fees)  
Funds Available Verified by WWC  $50,400.00  
    
Contract No. 733   
Vendor Doxim dba Utilitec   
 Contract Amount $148,500.00   

 5% Contingency $N/A   

 Total Funds Certified To Date $48,000.00   

    

Year 2 Services:   

Customer Care & Billing $49,500.00   

 Total for Year 2 Services $49,500.00  <$50,400.00 > 

    

Contract Amount To Date $97,500.00   
 
BACKGROUND: 
Contract NTP Date:   May 21, 2024  
Original Contract End Date:  May 20, 2027  
New Contract End Date:  n/a  
 

Page 45



Manager’s Update -  July 2025 to August 2025 
August 21, 2025 RBM 
 

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

The DOW solicited services for processing routine mass mailing and billing statement services 
for all customer accounts including other customer notifications through sole source 
procurement.  Utilitec has provided excellent service all throughout the term of their previous 
contract engagement with the DOW.  Continuation of their services will also provide significant 
stability to ensure that the bill processing services will not be disrupted.  The 3-year multi-term 
contract will be renewed annually, subject to the availability of funds as approved in the DOW’s 
annual budget: 
 
Year 1 Services (365 days):  $48,000.00 
Year 2 Services (365 days):  $49,500.00 
Year 3 Services (365 days):  $51,000.00 
 
Total Contract (1,095 days):  $148,500.00 
 
 
3. CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO CONTRACT NO. 781 (PAUL’S ELECTRICAL 

CONTRACTING, LLC) 
JOB NO. 24-14, LĪHUʻE BASEYARD ELECTRICAL RELOCATION, LĪHUʻE, 
KAUA'I, HAWAI'I 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Manager approve the Change Order No. 1, which is a no-cost time 
extension for Contract No. 781. 
 
FUNDING: 
Account No. N/A  
Acct Description N/A  
Funds Available Verified by WWC  $N/A  
    
Contract No. 781   
Vendor Paul’s Electrical Contracting, 

LLC   
 Contract Amount $180,700.00  

 5% Contingency N/A  

 Total Funds Certified To Date $180,700.00  

    

Change Order No. 1:   

Contract Time Extension $0.00  

 Total Change Order No. 1 $0.00 <$N/A > 

    

Contract Amount To Date $180,700.00  

Fund Balance   $N/A  
 
BACKGROUND: 
Contract NTP Date:   May 1, 2025  
Original Contract End Date:  October 27, 2025  
New Contract End Date:  February 24, 2026  

Page 46



Manager’s Update -  July 2025 to August 2025 
August 21, 2025 RBM 
 

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
The original contract duration was 180 calendar days.  As a result of the 31-35 week lead time 
for the automatic transfer switch (ATS), 120 calendar days are being added to the contract time.  
Therefore, the new contract end date of this no-cost time extension change order will be 
February 24, 2026. 
 
 
4. NASPO VL CONTRACT NO. 17-18, CPA2024-01, YEAR 3 OF 3 SERVICES AND 

CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 WITH CARAHSOFT TECHNOLOGY 
CORPORATION. 
ASSET MANAGEMENT MANAGED SERVICES 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Manager approve Year 3 of 3 Services, and Change Order No. 3 to 
continue 1-year managed services support for Cartegraph Asset Management Solution. 
 
FUNDING: 
Account No. 10-02-10-550-000  
Acct Description WU/IT/Admin/Subscription Based IT Arrangement 

(SBITA)  
Funds Available Verified by WWC  $41,083.53 
    
Contract No. CPA2024-01   
Vendor Carahsoft Technology 

Corporation   
 Contract Amount (Year 1 of 3) $69,751.56  

 Year 2 of 3 (11/21/24) $32,119.22  

 Change Order 1 (03/21/24) $9,040.00  

 Change Order 2 (11/21/24) $4,905.55  

 Total Funds Certified To Date $115,816.33  

    

Year 3 (of 3): $32,207.59 plus HI Tax $33,725.21  
Change Order 3: Continued Asset Management 
Managed Services (1 year) $7,358.32  

 Total Year 3 and CO3 $41,083.53 <$41,083.53> 

    

Contract Amount To Date $156,899.86  

    
 
BACKGROUND: 
Contract NTP Date:   September 7, 2023  
Original Contract End Date:  August 31, 2024  
New Contract End Date:  August 31, 2026  
 
The Department completed the Backflow Module implementation successfully, but requires 
additional technical support for letter modifications and system editing.  This CO3 continues 1 
year of managed services that are support outside of normal Cartegraph customer help.  The 

Page 47



Manager’s Update -  July 2025 to August 2025 
August 21, 2025 RBM 
 

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

additional technical support will continue through until August 31, 2026, which coincides with 
the cloud hosting licensing agreement. 
 
The Department is also entering into Year 3 (of 3) of the multi-term contract agreement, NASPO 
VL Contract No. 17-18. 
 
 
CONVEYANCE OF WATER FACILITIES $311,853.90 
 

APPLICANT TMK # LOCATION 
Charter Communications – 1.5” Water Meter 
Service Lateral Lot 18 

3-5-003:018 Lihue 

Waiola Phase II Subdivision 3-3-021:100 
to 119 Lihue 

Opaeka’a Falls – Five 5/8” Water Meters and 6” 
RPDA Plan for Lot 2 

4-2-003:012 Wailua 

First Hawaiian Bank Lihue Banking Center 3-3-003:056 Lihue 
 

Page 48


	RBM Agenda 08-21-25 FINAL
	Draft Minutes
	07-17-25 RBM Open Session Minutes DRAFT
	New Business
	MR 26-03 Adobe Software Transaction Agreement - Adobe
	MR 26-03 ATTACHMENT - Adobe_Developer-Terms
	Namahana Education Foundation Appeal letter for 1 1.5 inch meter 2025.08.10
	Staff Reports
	1a. Fiscal Division Dashboard - July 2025 (08-21-25 RBM)
	1b. Fiscal Budget Report - July 2025 (08-21-25 RBM)
	2. Ops Division Dashboard - July 2025 (08-21-25 RBM)
	3. Eng. Division Dashboard - July 2025 (08-21-25 RBM)
	4c. 2025-08-11 Vacancy Pie Chart
	5. Manager's Update (08-21-25 RBM)

	Minutes: 
	New Business: 
	Staff Reports: 
	Staff Reports 2: 


